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Protect environment, Create future together

For the reason of good corporate citizenship, we print our 2011 Interim Report with
FSC paper to fulfill our corporate responsibility and create a bright future for our next
generation.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Franshion Properties (China) Limited (“Franshion Properties” or
the “Company”), | am pleased to present the interim report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”, “we"
or "us”) for the six months ended 30 June 2011 (“the period under review” or “the first half of the year”) for your
review.

During the period under review, profit attributable to owners of the parent amounted to HK$1,640.4 million,
representing an increase of 57% over HK$1,042.9 million in the corresponding period of 2010; whereas profit
attributable to owners of the parent less fair value gains on investment properties (net of deferred tax) amounted to
HK$1,050.9 million, representing an increase of 64% over HK$639.9 million in the corresponding period of last year.
The Board does not recommend payment of interim dividend.

In the first half of 2011, in executing the austerity policies on the residential housing market promulgated since
2010, the PRC government endeavoured to contain unreasonable investment and speculation demands through
differentiated measures on housing credit, taxation policies and housing purchase restrictions on the one hand, and
on the other hand, through expanding land supply to cope with market needs, in particular a number of measures
to push ahead the construction of affordable housing have been issued to drive the adjustment of the residential
housing supply structure. During the first half of the year, as the above austerity measures began to take effect, the
overall transaction volume of residential housing nationwide showed a slight decrease and the overall increase in
housing prices was contained. However, the shortage and investment value of high-end residential housing became
more significant. In the area of high-end commercial properties, the Group has established its core business and asset
portfolio including property development, property leasing and hotel operations. In spite of the increasing pressure
from the austerity policies on the residential housing area, the three major segments of the Group continued to
record significant growth during the first half of 2011.

During the period under review, with respect to property development, the Group sped up the development of
high-end and premium branding projects and successfully commenced sales for two high-end residential housing
projects in the first half of the year. In April, Beijing Guangqu Jin Mao Palace Project commenced its grand sales.
Leveraging on its rare prime location, high-end quality products and strong brand assurance, it hit the historical
record in terms of sales amount on the date of sales launch among all residential housing products in Beijing. In
June, another high-end and low density residential housing project, Shanghai Dongtan Jin Mao Noble Manor Project
also commenced sales and drew an overwhelming response from the market where the total number of sales
subscriptions and average price upon sales launch far outperformed the similar products in the surrounding region.
Moreover, Building No.1 of Shanghai Port International Cruise Terminal Project, a riverfront project located in the
core area of North Bund of Shanghai, was successfully sold, and letters of intent have been entered into for the
remaining unsold buildings in general. Part of the buildings of the adjacent project, Shanghai International Shipping
Service Center Project, will complete roof sealing during the year.
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As for property leasing, driven by the steady growth of the economy, the demand for high-end office buildings
in Beijing and Shanghai is strong. The occupancy rate and rental level of the high-end office buildings held and
operated by the Group at the prime locations in Beijing and Shanghai performed remarkably during the period.
Our two office buildings, Beijing Chemsunny World Trade Centre and Sinochem Tower had an occupancy rate
of 100% during the period, whereas our office building in Shanghai, Jin Mao Tower, continued to record a very
high occupancy rate in spite of the substantial increase in supply of office buildings in the surrounding region and
remained its leading position in the region. During the first half of the year, Beijing Chemsunny World Trade Centre
and Jin Mao Tower were successfully elected in the Top 20 Premium Office Buildings in China jointly organized
by fouxun.com, China Office Industry Association and China Office Research Center where the Group is the only
property developer which owns two premium office buildings among them.

With respect to hotel operations, as a result of the strong growth in tourism and significant increase of business
travel due to economic recovery, the high-end hotel market remained flourishing in core cities and major tourism
and resort regions during the first half of 2011. Capitalising on its advantages in hotel operations over the years,
the Group seized the market opportunities and recorded a substantial growth in the operations of hotel segment in
the first half of the year over that in the corresponding period of last year. The operating results of The Ritz-Carlton,
Sanya and Hilton Sanya Resort & Spa remained the market leader, whereas the performance results of Westin Beijing,
Chaoyang and JW Marriott Shenzhen also grew significantly over that in the same period of last year.

In the first half of 2011, the Group achieved significant breakthroughs in the areas of land requisition and fund
raising. With its unremitting dedication, in January, the Group successfully obtained the tier-one land development
right of the Changsha Meixi Lake International Service and Technology Innovation City Project with a site area of
11,452 mu and an estimated total gross floor area of approximately 11.34 million square metres, representing a
significant strategic value to the Group. Moreover, the Group also actively followed up the potential projects in
core cities such as Beijing, Shanghai and Hangzhou and regional cities such as Jinan, Chongging and Ningbo, and
selectively expanded its quality land reserves. In the area of funding, the Group actively raised funds through many
channels to secure the demand for project development. In April, the Group successfully completed the issuance of
10-year senior notes outside the PRC and raised US$500 million offshore funds at a lower cost. In May, the Group
officially entered into a RMB8.0 billion long-term credit facilities agreement with China Development Bank to provide
sufficient funding for subsequent project development and new project investment.

Implementation of green strategies is a major strategic measure of the Group. During the first half of the year,
through selecting and identifying green strategic partners and pushing ahead the implementation of the green
architecture project, the Group gradually pushed forward its own green architecture industry chain integration.
In March, the Group successfully purchased 16,800 tonnes of Panda Standard voluntary emission reduction via
China Beijing Environment Exchange, which was the first deal regarding voluntary emission reduction in China and
represented a major step of the Group towards the development of green strategies. The Group aimed to develop
an internationally renowned green ecological city with the acquisition of Changsha Meixi Lake Project, the first
batch of low carbon model projects of the National Development and Reform Commission during the period of the
12th Five-Year Plan. The Group also endeavoured to introduce high quality education resources to its development
projects and obtain advanced certifications including the State Green Mark (BZ4%4Z) and LEED-School in respect of
its school constructions. In addition, the Group continued to accelerate its branding strategies. In July, our “Jin Mao”
brand was recognised as one of “China’s 500 Most Valuable Brands” in 2011 (the 8th session), published by World
Brand Lab, with its brand value of RMB4,965 million for seven years in a row.

Given the current positive macroeconomic growth and steady development of the economy of China, it is expected
that the PRC government will continue to implement tightening monetary policies to curb inflation in the second
half of 2011. In the area of real estate, according to the New National Five ("#1BIF{&") promulgated by the PRC
government in July, the PRC government will strictly implement the purchase restrictions and differentiated credit
policies and accelerate the construction of affordable housing in adherence to the existing austerity measures.
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The Group considers that, although the austerity measures launched by the government will bring setbacks to some
property developers in the short term, such measures are favourable to the sustainable and healthy development
of the real estate market as a whole. Given the continuous development of the PRC economy and progress of
urbanization, the real estate market of China will undergo long-term and sustainable growth. In particular, in the
focus areas of the Group, on the one hand, market demand for high-end and premium branding residential housing
will remain strong due to the increasing demand for higher quality housing in first-tier cities and the intensifying
shortage of high-end housing as a result of the adjustment of housing supply. On the other hand, high-end
commercial properties will face tremendous growth potential due to the increasing demand for business and
commercial space driven by economic development.

Looking into the second half of the year and the future, the Group will adhere to its stated development strategies
and strive to maintain its high-end positioning and premium branding. In addition, with the focus on urban
complexes and high-end housing, the Group will actively expand business in first-tier and second-tier regional core
cities. Through its operating strategy of both “property sales and holdings”, the Group strives to accelerate its
business expansion with a view to becoming the leading high-end commercial property developer and operator in
China.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to all the Company’s
customers, business partners, shareholders and staff, and hope we can continue to win your invaluable support. We

will continue our innovation efforts and active pursuits to achieve even more splendid results for the Group with a
view to maximizing the returns for all our shareholders.

LUO Dongjiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 August 2011
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MARKET REVIEW

From the macroeconomic perspective, as the starting year of the
12th Five-Year Plan, the economy of China maintained a fast yet
steady growth in the first half of 2011, as evidenced by a 9.6%
growth in GDP as compared with that of the corresponding period
of last year. Total fixed asset investment in China grew by 25.6% as
compared with that of the same period of last year while the real
estate development investment saw a growth of 32.9% as compared
with that of the same period of last year. Total retail sales amount of
consumer goods grew by 16.8% as compared with that of the same
period of the previous year.

With respect to the real estate industry, in view of the austerity
measures on purchase restrictions and price limits and tightening
monetary policies, the Real Estate Climate Index continued to fall since
April to 101.75 in June 2011 as a result of the PRC government’s
austerity measures after hitting the record of 105.8 in March 2011,
representing a decrease of 4.05 points. As the government'’s austerity
measures on the real estate market began to take positive effect,
the overly rapid increase in property prices in the prior period was
effectively contained and the period-to-period growth of the property
prices for most cities continued to shrink. However, residential
housing market in first-tier cities remained stable; the demand and
supply of office buildings were strong, and the hotel market remained
promising in general. The positive long-term prospect of the property
market did not reveal any significant changes.

From the perspective of the regional office buildings market, with
the gradual recovery of the global economy from recession and the
continuous fast growth of the domestic economy, multi-national and
domestic enterprises continued to maintain a substantial demand for
commercial office buildings, which helped drive the strong growth
of the office leasing market in international metropolitan cities such
as Beijing and Shanghai. As the prices of rentals for grade A office
buildings in high-end business districts such as Beijing Financial
Street, CBD and Lujiazui, Pudong, Shanghai continued to soar and
the vacant office space continued to diminish, some of the projects
have achieved an occupancy rate of 100%. It is expected that new
forms of office buildings such as corporate individual office buildings,
headquarter bases and low-carbon green office buildings will account
for a significant portion of the market share in view of the economic
structure upgrade and transformation.

From the perspective of the regional hotel market, along with the
recovery of the global economy and the booming development of the
PRC economy, the global business activities were increasingly active
and the demand for domestic and overseas tourism markets continued
to grow. The overall PRC hotel market will lead a good growth
momentum driven by the positive macroeconomic environment.
However, with the surging supply of hotel rooms, the hotel market
in Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen and Sanya will face increasingly fierce
competition.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

During the period under review, the Group successfully proceeded
with the business operation and market exploration.

Site B of Shanghai Port International Cruise Terminal Project again
achieved remarkable performance and became a significant driver of
the Group’s overall profit contribution for the first half of the year.
The hotel operations segment also underwent a considerable growth
and continued to maintain its leading position in peer competition. All
investment properties maintained a relatively high occupancy rate and
rental, which in turn contributed to the steady co-development of our
three major business segments.

On 26 January 2011, the Group entered into an agreement with
the Management Committee of Dahexi Pilot Zone in Changsha
and other related parties, confirming that the Group has become
the investor in the project for developing Meixi Lake International
Service and Technology Innovation City, and would endeavour to
develop the project into a “two-type community” model district. The
project occupies a total site area of 11,452 mu. This will accelerate
the expansion of the land reserves and regional business coverage
of the Group, laying a solid foundation for the Group’s long-term
development.

Property development segment

During the period under review, the Group achieved satisfactory
results from the sales of the property development projects while
the construction progress of the projects under development was on
schedule.

Site B of Shanghai Port International Cruise Terminal Project
(situated on the west bank of the Huangpu River, North Bund of
Hongkou District) is under development and most of its sale has
been completed. The construction of all remaining unsold buildings
has been basically completed and letters of intent for sale have
been received in general. Pursuant to the contractual arrangement,
the Group is entitled to 50% interests in Site B of Shanghai Port
International Cruise Terminal Project.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Property development segment (Continued)

Shanghai International Shipping Service Center Project (situated
on the west bank of the Huangpu River, North Bund of Hongkou
District), being a key project of Shanghai City, is currently under
development. This project has been considered as a key integral
part of the urban growth strategies in Shanghai. The entire project
is composed of the eastern, central and western sites. It is expected
that, after the consolidated development, the project will have a total
gross floor area of approximately 530,933 square metres. At present,
the project is currently under full construction and all construction
works are conducted on schedule. In the meantime, the Group is
active in exploring its market and some of the buildings have secured
letters of intent with the potential customers. The Group currently
owns 50% interests in Shanghai International Shipping Service Center
Project.

Shanghai Dongtan Jin Mao Noble Manor Project (situated in
Chenjia Town, Chongming Island, Shanghai) is currently under
development and will be developed into a high-end integrated
recreational, sports and resort centre along the riverbank, comprising
clubs, low-density residential areas, hotels and serviced apartments.
This project has an estimated total gross floor area of 164,009
square metres. Currently, some of the buildings under the project
have commenced sales, drawing an overwhelming response from
customers’ subscription. On the other hand, the construction of the
unsold buildings is carried on at full scale with all construction works
being conducted on schedule. The Group owns 100% interests in the
Shanghai Dongtan Jin Mao Noble Manor Project.

Beijing Guangqu Jin Mao Palace Project (situated at the east
inner side of Fourth Ring Road in Chaoyang District, Beijing) is under
development and will be developed into a high-end residential
complex, consisting of high-end residential properties, high-end
commercial areas, sports parks and renowned schools. It will represent
a metropolitan landmark with a hybrid of humanities, recreational,
educational and fashionable elements. This project has an estimated
total gross floor area of 366,302 square metres. Currently, some
buildings under the project have commenced sales. Most of the
residential units and serviced apartments launched in phase | have
been sold and have once topped the sales chart among the projects
launched in Beijing for the first half of the year. The Group owns
100% interests in the Beijing Guangqu Jin Mao Palace Project.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Property leasing segment

The three properties under the property leasing segment of the
Group continued to maintain a relatively high level of occupancy rate
and rental as compared with other similar properties, mainly due to
their excellent quality, prime geographical location and high-quality
property services.

Within the financial district of Beijing and situated on Fuxingmen
Nei Street, Beijing Chemsunny World Trade Centre is widely
recognised by the clients throughout the market due to its prime
location and ideal quality, and hence appealing to both domestic and
foreign enterprises, which gives support to a continuous high level of
occupancy rate and rental. As at 30 June 2011, the occupancy rate
of Beijing Chemsunny World Trade Centre was 100% (30 June 2010:
94.4%). The primary tenants of this property are Sinochem Group and
its related companies, and some other eminent companies from the
finance and consulting industries. Currently, the Group owns 100%
interests in Beijing Chemsunny World Trade Centre.

Situated on Fuxingmen Wai Street, the prime location of the business
circle of the financial street, Beijing, Sinochem Tower is an office
building supported by sophisticated office facilities and personalized
services. During the period under review, by enhancing the quality of
products and services, the Group not only effectively increased the
rental level but also maintained a high level of the occupancy rate. As
at 30 June 2011, the occupancy rate of Sinochem Tower was 100%
(30 June 2010: 96.0%). The principal tenants are eminent enterprises
in the finance, software, and consulting industries and the related
companies of the Group. Currently, the Group owns 100% interests in
Sinochem Tower.

Situated in the Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone of Pudong, Shanghai,
Jin Mao Tower is one of China’s landmark buildings and has become
one of the most preferred locations with superior service standards
for domestic and overseas well-known institutions to set up their
offices in Shanghai. Even though various new office buildings
were successively launched in the region and the competition has
been fierce, with the Group’s continued efforts, during the period
under review, Jin Mao Tower outperformed its competitors in
terms of occupancy rate, which grew significantly over that in the
corresponding period of last year, whilst maintaining the rental at
a stable level. As at 30 June 2011, the occupancy rate of Jin Mao
Tower was 96.9% (30 June 2010: 87.2%). The primary tenants are
the Fortune 500 companies, Forbes 2000 companies and the related
companies of the Group. Currently, the Group owns 100% interests in
Jin Mao Tower.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Hotel operations segment

In the first half of 2011, capitalising on the favourable market
opportunities, the hotel operations segment of the Group continued
to enhance its operating efficiency and actively began expansion of
external markets, achieving substantial improvement in its results.

Situated inside Jin Mao Tower, Grand Hyatt Shanghai maintained
its unigque landmark advantages and high standard of quality services
and remained the leader in terms of occupancy rate and average
room rate among its competitors in the region as it actively coped
with the lower demand after the World Expo and the release of
substantial supply of five-star hotels in Shanghai. Despite the decrease
in occupancy rate over that in the same period of last year, the overall
performance remained steady. As at 30 June 2011, the average
occupancy rate and average room rate of Grand Hyatt Shanghai
were 60.5% and RMB1,780 respectively (30 June 2010: 70.4% and
RMB1,935 respectively). Currently, the Group owns 100% interests in
Grand Hyatt Shanghai.

Situated at the enchanting Yalong Bay, Sanya, Hainan Province,
the Ritz-Carlton Sanya and the Hilton Sanya Resort & Spa of
the Group fully capitalised the external conditions by formulating
appropriate marketing strategies and pricing policies to greatly
enhance the core competitiveness of their own products, thereby
enabling themselves to secure the leading position in Yalong Bay.
During the period, the occupancy rate and average room rate achieved
considerable growth over those in the corresponding period of last
year. As at 30 June 2011, the average occupancy rate and average
room rate of the Ritz-Carlton, Sanya were 84.2% and RMB2,710
respectively (30 June 2010: 79.5% and RMB2,562 respectively) while
the average occupancy rate and average room rate of Hilton Sanya
Resort & Spa were 72.0% and RMB2,176 respectively (30 June 2010:
72.2% and RMB1,862 respectively). Currently, the Group owns 100%
interests in the Ritz-Carlton Sanya and 60% interests in the Hilton
Sanya Resort & Spa.

Situated at Yansha Business Circle, Chaoyang District, Beijing, Westin
Beijing, Chaoyang achieved a relatively substantial growth in both
average occupancy rate and average room rate for the first half of
2011 as compared with those of the corresponding period of last
year. Since the inception of its operation, the hotel won the continued
support from its stable and quality customers and government
authorities by taking advantage of its product strength and favourable
geographical location. Leveraging on the flexible pricing strategies
and gradually enlarged market share, the hotel is currently among the
best-performing hotels in the peer competition in the region. As at
30 June 2011, the average occupancy rate and average room rate of
Westin Beijing, Chaoyang were 73.4% and RMB1,386 respectively (30
June 2010: 63.7% and RMB1,265 respectively).
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Hotel operations segment (Continued)

Situated on Wangfujing Avenue in Beijing, Wangfujing Grand Hotel
has attracted a large number of tourists due to its convenient location.
In order to further enhance the quality of the hotel, the Group will
carry out a complete revamp on Wangfujing Grand Hotel. At present,
the hotel has adopted the operating strategy of “control occupancy
rate whilst increasing average room rate” to ensure normal and safe
operation and to make preparation for the complete revamp. As at
30 June 2011, the average occupancy rate and average room rate of
Wangfujing Grand Hotel were 30.5% and RMB651 respectively (30
June 2010: 61.3% and RMB575 respectively). Currently, the Group
owns 100% interests in Westin Beijing, Chaoyang and Wangfujing
Grand Hotel.

Located in Futian District, Shenzhen, JW Marriott Shenzhen made
huge progress both in the agreement market and travel agency
market through optimizing the marketing team to actively expand the
market share. The business tour operation also achieved satisfactory
performance. As at 30 June 2011, the average occupancy rate and
average room rate of JW Marriott Shenzhen were 72.7% and RMB949
respectively (30 June 2010: 65.6% and RMB799 respectively).
Currently, the Group owns 100% interests in JW Marriott Shenzhen.

Reserved projects

Jin Mao World Heritage Park Redevelopment Project is located
at the original site of Yunnan Lijiang World Heritage Park, with a site
area of approximately 333,330 square metres. The project is set to be
an integrated commercial project, which consists of at least one 5-star
resort hotel, and aims to combine the Naxi culture with international
design concepts, so as to become the most unique high-end resort
hotel and low-density dwelling houses in China. The estimated total
gross floor area is approximately 215,000 square metres. Currently,
the Group owns 100% interests in the Jin Mao World Heritage Park
Redevelopment Project.

Lijiang Jin Mao Mansion Project is situated at Ganhaizi in Lijiang
Yulong Snow Mountain, Yunnan. Currently, the Group has acquired
a total site area of approximately 54,241 square metres for the
project. At the same time, the Group is active in acquiring the land
parcel with a site area of approximately 53,360 square metres at the
southeast of such land parcel. At present, the transfer procedures for
the land occupying an area of approximately 11,334 square metres
for the project have been completed while the transfer procedures
for the remaining portion of the area are currently in progress. The
Group plans to develop this project into a five-star luxury hotel and
low density dwelling houses, targeting high-end local and outside
tourists, with an estimated total gross floor area of approximately
43,060 square metres. Currently, the Group owns 100% interests in
the Lijiang Jin Mao Mansion Project.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Reserved projects (Continued)

The above projects would be managed and operated jointly with
the international hotel management brands in order to achieve the
economies of scale and synergy effect. At present, the initial planning
and design works for such projects are currently underway. These
projects will be developed on a stage-by-stage basis and launched to
the market gradually.

Located in the core region of the Dahexi Pilot Zone, Changsha City,
Hunan Province, Changsha Meixi Lake Project has a total site area
of 11,452 mu and an estimated total gross floor area (including
basement) of approximately 11.34 million square metres. The project
will feature concepts of ecology, energy conservation, innovation
and technology. The Group endeavours to develop the project into
a "two-type community” model district in central China. The Group
has obtained the tier-one land development right of the project.
According to the development agreement, the Group is entitled
to most of the land appreciation gain arising from the transfer of
tier-one land development right of such project. Currently, the land
requisition, compensation and resettlement, all preliminary municipal
infrastructure and urban public facilities within the area of such
project are substantially completed and such project is expected to
commence land launch in the second half of the year. The bidding,
auction or listing-for-sale procedures for the land in the project will be
completed in 2017. The Group also plans to acquire a portion of land
within the area of the project to carry out subsequent developments
through transfer procedures and develop such project into the most
competitive high-end international commercial and innovation centre,
as well as an ecological new residential town with scenic landscape in
the central region.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

In the first half of 2011, the real estate market in China experienced
six months of profound reforms given the implementation of
stronger administrative and economic austerity measures such as
the National Eight (“EIJ\{§") and trial property tax, as well as the
impacts of property purchase restrictions nationwide, coupled with
tightening monetary policies, increasing interest rates by the central
bank and severe inflationary pressure. Under the backdrop of such
macroeconomic factors, transaction volume of residential housing
plunged significantly and housing prices in some regions indicated a
downward trend.

For a medium-to-long term, the Group holds the view that, with the
progress of urbanization in China, there will be no change in the
rigid demand for residential housing, which is a driving force for the
sustainable growth of the property market. Also, as one of the key
industries supporting the domestic economy, the development of the
real estate sector is closely related to the growth rate of the domestic
economy, thereby directly affecting the pace of growth in the overall
China’s economy. As such, we remain prudent but optimistic about the
future development of the property market. Besides, riding on China’s
booming economy and recovery of the global economy, there are
huge potentials in the development of the investments in commercial
properties targeting the office buildings, commercial retailing and
complex buildings in China, presenting golden opportunities.

In upholding its prudent principle of investment, the Group will keep
a watchful eye on high-quality land parcels in certain target cities
such as Beijing, Shanghai and Hangzhou and identify quality merger
and acquisition opportunities so as to enrich the land bank and lay a
foundation for a stable and sustainable development of the Company
in the future. With respect to the projects under development, the
Group will promote the construction progress of such projects at
a steady pace according to the pre-set schedule, provided that the
quality and safety of construction are ensured. For the completed
development projects, the Group will proactively adjust its sales
strategies and continue to explore the potential customer base. In
the meanwhile, the Group will also enhance the quality of operation
and customers’ satisfaction for all leased properties. On the hotel
operations segment, the Group will flexibly adjust the operating
strategies and marketing measures with an aim to increase the quality
of service and stabilize the occupancy rate by capitalising on the
favourable external condition, and finally achieve a substantial growth
in results.

The Group will continue its endeavours to create higher value and
return for its shareholders and create more wealth for society.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

l. Revenue

For the six months ended 30 June 2011, revenue of the Group
amounted to HK$1,847.7 million (six months ended 30 June
2010: HK$4,103.2 million), representing a decrease of 55% as
compared with the corresponding period of last year, which was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the revenue from the sales of
properties.

BEEB S mE D ZHA Revenue by business segment
HZE6H30A LA EA
For the six months ended 30 June
20114 2010%F
2011 2010
HEBAZ IHBKAZ
Aot Aotk
(%) (%) #EHEH
(RE&EEZ) Percentage (R#&FHEZ)  Percentage (%)
(Unaudited) of the total (Unaudited)  of the total Percentage
BEEEBT revenue BEHET revenue change
HK$ million (%)  HK$ million (%) (%)
L E ks Property development 6.7 0 2,373.2 58 -100
MERE Property leasing 492.1 27 428.8 10 15
B R Hotel operations 1,084.4 59 1,007.3 25 8
Hih Others 264.5 14 293.9 7 -10
B Total 1,847.7 100 4,103.2 100 -55
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In the first half of 2011, revenue from property sales of the Group
decreased by 100% over that in the corresponding period of last year
to approximately HK$6.7 million. Revenue from property leasing grew
by 15% as compared with that of the corresponding period of last
year and revenue from hotel operations increased by 8% over that of
the corresponding period of last year, which was primarily attributable
to the increase in operating results of leased properties and various
hotels. Revenue from others (primarily including the property-related
revenues arising from the observation deck on the 88th floor of Jin
Mao Tower, property management and building decoration) decreased
slightly over that in the corresponding period of last year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

1. Cost of sales and gross profit margin

For the six months ended 30 June 2011, cost of sales of the Group
was approximately HK$732.3 million (for the six months ended 30
June 2010: HK$2,071.4 million) and the overall gross profit margin of
the Group in the first half of 2011 increased to 60% from 50% in the
first half of 2010.

During the first half of the year, the gross profit margin of property
development was 57% (corresponding period of last year: 43%).
During the period, the occupancy rate and rental rate of the
property leasing segment increased slightly, with gross profit margin
maintaining at the high level of 91% (corresponding period of last
year: 90%). The gross profit margin of hotel operations was 57%
(corresponding period of last year: 54%). The increase in gross profit
margin was primarily attributable to the rise in the room rate of hotels
for this year.

Ill.  Other income and gains

For the six months ended 30 June 2011, other income and gains
of the Group increased by 207% from HK$692.8 million in the
corresponding period of last year to approximately HK$2,128.7
million. The increase was mainly due to the investment gains of
HK$1,137.5 million arising from the disposal of Building No.1 of
Shanghai Port International Cruise Terminal Project by the Group
in the first half of the year; and the fair value gains on investment
properties arising from the investment properties held by the Group
increased by 46% to HK$786.0 million from HK$537.4 million in the
corresponding period of last year.

IV.  Selling and marketing expenses

For the six months ended 30 June 2011, selling and marketing
expenses of the Group increased by 26% to HK$122.8 million, from
HK$97.9 million in the corresponding period of last year, mainly
because of the increase in selling and marketing expenses of Beijing
Guangqu Jin Mao Palace Project and Shanghai Dongtan Jin Mao Noble
Manor Project that commenced sales in the first half of the year.
Selling and marketing expenses comprise primarily the advertising
expenses, commissions paid to the relevant sales agencies and other
expenses in relation to market promotion incurred in the Group’s daily
operations.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

V. Administrative expenses

For the six months ended 30 June 2011, administrative expenses of
the Group amounted to HK$346.6 million, representing an increase
of 17% from HK$295.7 million in the corresponding period of last
year. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in general
office expenses. Administrative expenses mainly comprise staff costs,
consulting fees, entertainment expenses, general office expenses and
depreciation expenses.

V. Finance costs

For the six months ended 30 June 2011, finance costs of the Group
were HK$448.5 million, representing an increase of 59% from
HK$281.3 million in the corresponding period of last year. The
increase in finance cost was mainly attributable to the increase of
loans and the increase in the lending rate in the first half of the year.

VII. Income tax expense

For the six months ended 30 June 2011, the Group had an income
tax expense of HK$612.3 million, representing a decrease of 4%
from HK$637.6 million in the corresponding period of last year. The
decrease in income tax expense was primarily because of the decrease
in land appreciation tax due to the decrease in revenue from the sales
of properties in the first half of the year.

VIIl. Profit attributable to owners of the parent

For the six months ended 30 June 2011, profit attributable to
owners of the parent amounted to HK$1,640.4 million, representing
an increase of 57% compared with HK$1,042.9 million in the
corresponding period of 2010. Profit attributable to owners of the
parent excluding fair value gains on investment properties (net
of deferred tax) amounted to HK$1,050.9 million, representing
an increase of 64% compared with HK$639.9 million in the
corresponding period of last year.

IX. Investment properties

As at 30 June 2011, investment properties comprise the Central
and West Tower of Beijing Chemsunny World Trade Centre, Jin Mao
Tower (the leased portion) and Sinochem Tower. Investment properties
increased from HK$12,773.6 million as at 31 December 2010 to
HK$13,867.0 million as at 30 June 2011. The increase was mainly due
to the appreciation of investment properties.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

X. Properties under development

As at 30 June 2011, the non-current portion of properties under
development comprised property development costs for Beijing
Guangqu Jin Mao Palace Project, Shanghai International Shipping
Service Center Project, Shanghai Dongtan Jin Mao Noble Manor
Project and Yunnan Lijiang Projects, whereas the current portion of
properties under development was property development costs for
Site B of Shanghai Port International Cruise Terminal Project and a
portion of Shanghai Dongtan Jin Mao Noble Manor Project.

Properties under development (current and non-current) increased
from HK$13,641.6 million as at 31 December 2010 to HK$14,675.0
million as at 30 June 2011. The increase was mainly driven by the
steady development of Beijing Guangqu Jin Mao Palace Project,
Shanghai International Shipping Service Center Project, and Shanghai
Dongtan Jin Mao Noble Manor Project.

XIl.  Properties held for sale

As at 30 June 2011, properties held for sale mainly included the
unsold portion of Zhuhai Every Garden Project, unsold portion of East
Tower and parking spaces of the Beijing Chemsunny World Trade
Centre.

Properties held for sale decreased from HK$1,021.2 million as at 31
December 2010 to HK$413.9 million as at 30 June 2011, which was
mainly due to the sale of Building No.1 of Site B of Shanghai Port
International Cruise Terminal Project during the period under review.

XIl. Land under development

As at 30 June 2011, land under development represents the
land requisition cost, compensation cost and other preliminary
infrastructure costs in relation to Changsha Meixi Lake International
Service and Technology Innovation City project.

XlIll. Trade receivables

As at 30 June 2011, trade receivables were HK$120.7 million,
representing an increase of 21% from HK$99.5 million as at 31
December 2010. The increase in trade receivables was primarily due to
the increase in receivables as a result of the business expansion of the
decoration company under the Group.

INTERIM REPORT 2011 FRANSHION PROPERTIES (CHINA) LIMITED

19



20

B & EIRE (&)

TH - -BENEZRANENE

MK2011%F6 8308  BNESERMENE
1% BB %6,055.88 BT+ 8201012 A31
BB K787.78 8 TIEMN669% « EEMMN
RDHZHIE B FEf £ b 5k K TA2 78 A0 A
g( °

1T G ERITEFREMEK

201156 A308  sF BT E R H
Bk (R RIERE) BAEK30,835.988
JC v B2010%12A318 8 /8 #18,235.28H
BITIEIN69% © 5T B ER1T B AN E {8 5138
m- xERHRAEBEARTIEB RENY
INEFIEMA RS F EFFEITTSEET
BI04 BRE L EIRPTER o

SR RE M AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

XIV. Trade and bills payables

As at 30 June 2011, trade and bills payables were HK$6,055.8 million,
representing an increase of 669% from HK$787.7 million as at 31
December 2010. The increase was primarily due to the increase in
land and construction costs payable for Changsha Meixi Lake Project.

XV. Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

As at 30 June 2011, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
(including current and non-current) were HK$30,835.9 million,
representing an increase of 69% over HK$18,235.2 million as at 31
December 2010. The increase in interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings was primarily due to the increase in external loans used
for new project development by the Group and the issuance of
US$500 million 10-year senior notes during the first half of the year.

Analysis of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

201145 20104
6A30H 12A31H B2HEDL
(REER) (EFER) (%)
As at As at
30 June 31 December Percentage
2011 2010 change
(Unaudited) (Audited) (%)
(BEEET) (B¥BEET)
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
FFBERITE A EMER Interest-bearing bank and
(RB&RIERE) other borrowings (including
current and non-current) 30,835.9 18,235.2 69
Nk REER Less: entrusted loans (5,349.5) (2,120.9) 152
AR B RITERE loans pledged by bank
RER deposits of the Group (205.5) (358.8) 43
MHZEEERNIEITEREH  Interest-bearing bank and other
BN BIIEITER KL borrowings after entrusted
HpfEmR loans and loans pledged by
bank deposits 25,280.9 15,755.5 60
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

XVI. Gearing ratio

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted
capital. Net debt is calculated as total interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings less restricted bank balances, pledged deposits and cash
and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity as well as the amounts due to related parties. The Group aims
to maintain the net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at a reasonable
level. The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio as at 30 June 2011 and
31 December 2010 were as follows:

20115 2010%F
6A30H 12H31H
(RBER) (&EZ)
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(BE¥EET) (B¥EET)
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)

SHEIRITERMEAER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
(B RIERE) (current and non-current) 30,835.9 18,235.2
Nk - BEMBLEEY Less: cash and cash equivalents (13,648.7) (11,229.5)
PR Il 1 15 3R S SR 17 31 restricted deposits and pledged deposits (5,667.4) (2,092.2)
FE Net debt 11,519.8 4,913.5
B Total equity 28,649.5 26,719.2
N FEAT AR T kB Add: amount due to related parties 76.9 1,144.8
FARIEENR Adjusted capital 28,726.4 27,864.0
SRETGER AR B E N R Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio 40% 18%
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

XVII. Liquidity and capital resources

The Group primarily uses its cash to pay for capital expenditure,
construction costs, land costs, infrastructure costs, consulting fees
paid to architects and designers and finance costs, as well as to
service the Group’s indebtedness, repay amounts owing to and loans
from related parties, and fund working capital and normal recurring
expenses. The Group has financed its liquidity requirements primarily
through proceeds from sales, internal resources, bank and other
borrowings.

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
HK$13,648.7 million, mainly denominated in RMB, HKD and USD (as
at 31 December 2010: HK$11,229.5 million).

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had total interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings of HK$30,835.9 million (as at 31 December 2010:
HK$18,235.2 million). An analysis of the interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings of the Group is set out as follows:

20114 20104

6A30H 12A31H

(REER) (& 5&%)

As at As at

30 June 31 December

2011 2010

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(B¥EERT) (BEEET)

(HK$ million) (HK$ million)

—FR Within 1 year 15,888.7 7,527.3
$F In the second year 3,971.6 2,398.6
F=FZFERF  BEEEME In the third to fifth years, inclusive 4,840.9 5,554.0
AEE Over five years 6,134.7 2,755.3
A&t Total 30,835.9 18,235.2

FTERITER R EMERAE15,888.78
ETAR—FNEE  WIEAERBEE
Hh B & AREBMAR G TR B IEEE I
REBSHEERAAQRFRAAMEHRNE
HLPEWES, 77048 B THELER - B H
FEEEEESR - AEEREERAARE
BB RETTEVIZZEFETE - AEE
WERE R ESANEHUETE -

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of approximately

HK$15,888.7 million repayable within one year shown under current
liabilities included entrusted loans totaling approximately HK$5,770.4
million provided by the Group and non-controlling shareholders of the
Company’s subsidiaries to the subsidiaries of the Company through
financial institutions. It is expected that such entrusted loans will be
renewed upon their maturity dates. All of the Group’s borrowings
are denominated in RMB, HKD and USD and bear interest at floating
rates. There is no material seasonal effect on the Group’s borrowing
requirements.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

XVII. Liquidity and capital resources (Continued)

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had banking facilities of HK$42,188.4
million denominated in RMB, HKD and USD. The amount of banking
facilities utilised was HK$25,770.2 million.

The Group’s net cash inflow of HK$1,583.1 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2011 consisted of:

1. A net cash outflow of HK$6,518.5 million from operating
activities, which was mainly attributable to the payment of land
costs, construction costs, interests and related taxes by the Group,
which was partially offset by receipt of the proceeds from the sales
of properties, the rental from leased properties and the revenues
from hotel operations.

2. A net cash outflow of HK$2,704.8 million from investing activities,
which was mainly attributable to the provision of entrusted loans
and the payment for purchase of fixed assets of the Group, which
was partially offset by the receipt of payment upon disposal of
Building No.1 of Site B of Shanghai Port International Cruise
Terminal Project.

3. A net cash inflow of HK$10,806.4 million from financing activities,
which was mainly attributable to the increase of bank and other
borrowings of the Group and the issuance of US$500 million
10-year senior notes during the first half of the year, which was
partially offset by repayments of bank and other borrowings.

XVIII. Pledge of assets

As at 30 June 2011, the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings were secured by the Group's fixed assets and land use
rights of HK$4,460.1 million, properties under development and
properties held for sale of HK$5,482.7 million, investment properties
of HK$12,990.1 million and bank deposits of HK$5,570.8 million.

XIX. Contingent liabilities

Details of contingent liabilities of the Group as at 30 June 2011 are
set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.
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XX. Capital commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

20115 2010%F
6A30H 12H31H
(REER) (&%)
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(B¥BEERT) (BEEET)
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)

BRI AERETHREERE Contracted, but not provided for
BRPYE Properties under development 3,526.3 1,759.8
BERA L Land under development 1,134.9 -
FEFIRE R Prepayment for investment 1,100.3 1,075.3
At Total 5,761.5 2,835.1

Zt- T E R

AEENEETZRERTYE  BRPL
- BIELEYE  REVERBEEDE -
HEAYMETSBEELDR  AREEERY

AR -

ZtZ FIRE R

7R £ B R A R O B i £ A R A R @B
7R 62 (B P TED W B 7 45 ) SR S B e By o B ERLAS
SENERMEBER - NEX LAeERAE
[ 1 AR BT B A R AE R A B S
WIEMFIEEBHORA - XN EEBHESE
HAREBEBRARAFEORERE - A&
[ B A8 A E M7 A T AR X

7a
a

o o
o

Zt= HMERERE

REBARED ERBAMKATIAARKE 4
B -AKBNBT2BPBEE - At - &
& B MR E R B R - ANEE B AR
BRAE R ES EREER - BMERRAKE
RFEEITE M - BEARBEEEREER AR
MRS AT AEARE R X ERKBHF

a2,
2

XXI. Market risk

The Group's assets are predominantly in the form of properties under
development, land under development, properties held for sale,
investment properties and hotel properties. In the event of a severe
downturn in the domestic property market, these assets may not be
readily realized.

XXIl. Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk resulting from fluctuations
in interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates primarily relates to the Group’s long term
debt obligations. Increase in interest rates will increase the interest
expenses relating to the Group’s outstanding floating rate borrowings
and increase the cost of new debt. Fluctuations in interest rates
may also lead to significant fluctuations in the fair value of our
debt obligations. The Group does not currently use any derivative
instruments to manage the Group’s interest rate risk.

XXIIl. Foreign exchange risk

Substantially all of the Group’s turnover and costs are denominated in
Renminbi. The Group reports its financial results in Hong Kong dollar.
As a result, the Group is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates. The Group has not currently engaged in hedging to
manage its currency risk. To the extent the Group decides to do so in
the future, the Group cannot assure that any future hedging activities
will protect the Group from fluctuations in exchange rates.

FEME(RE)ERAR —F——FhEwRE



B EIEE (&)

10 EE RFBBE

R2011F6 7308 - AEE & H£ F5,044%
BB - AEEMEEREESF IOH
e URHMEF  BFEERAKREE - BE
REETE - BIMRBRATE] - RERKETE -
SEREFENMEERN c AEEEFE I
MSEERTANEERFHRKFE -

tE RERETE

RATR2007F 1T AN EHA—ERE
HARERTE] ([RT21)) - 5EMERSEEYAR
BIZAEE  URBHEBERRARZEIEZ -

REARPRZMEFENRE  EFEF
EE*E;Hriﬂtt/ﬁEI%JOiWEﬂHTF'EJi%B%;E
BY2HEEZRBERE —EHENHEN
B - 28%  HERTOHR  8FE
AAREKREPREVAITHIFATES
EREEKRETHSRERAE  BRK
- BXAE KERET  BTEEAR
AMBIYIEFRITES -

B RBERT 2 FIAR A 5 E % 22 B g
ATEIE T AR ETENERNREH

ENBITERAAQREREEITRAN
10% ° WRIEARRQ AIFEAFR HATRE A BAFT 21T
#99,161,489,489lK B B 1T IR X » AN QA &) AJ
BEE &I M2 EE TR £916,148,948/%
B o

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

XXIV. Employees and remuneration policies

As at 30 June 2011, the Group employed 5,044 staff in total. The
Group provides competitive salaries and bonuses for its employees,
as well as other benefits, including retirement schemes, medical
insurance schemes, accident insurance schemes, unemployment
insurance schemes, maternity insurance schemes and housing
benefits. The Group’s salary levels are regularly reviewed against
market standards.

XXV. Share option scheme

On 22 November 2007, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”), the purpose of which is to increase the commitment
of participants to the Company and encourage them to fulfill the
objectives of the Company.

According to the terms of the Scheme of the Company, the Board
shall at its absolute discretion be entitled to grant to any participant
the right to subscribe a certain number of options at a subscription
price at any time within 10 years after the adoption date of the
Scheme. Participants, i.e. recipients of the options granted, include
any existing executive or non-executive directors of any member of
the Group, any senior management, key technical and professional
personnel, managers and employees of any member of the Group,
but do not include any independent non-executive director of the
Company.

The number of shares to be issued at any time upon exercise of all
options granted under the Scheme and other share option schemes
of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company at that time. Based on the issued share
capital of 9,161,489,489 shares of the Company in issue at the date
of this interim report, up to 916,148,948 shares may be issued by the
Company to participants under the Scheme.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

XXVI. Grant and exercise of options

On 5 May 2008, 5,550,000 share options were granted to eligible
participants at the exercise price of HK$3.37 for each share of the
Company to be issued, which was the average closing price of
the shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the five consecutive trading days
immediately preceding the grant date in respect of such options.
Such options shall take effect after two years from the date on
which the grantees are granted with the options. On 30 April
2010, the Remuneration and Nomination Committee of the Board
of the Company approved the vesting of 40% of the share options
granted on 5 May 2008 to the grantees by the Company according
to the Scheme, the performance review results of the grantee of
share options and the Explanation on the Fulfillment of Conditions
of Share Options of Franshion Properties for 2009 provided by the
independent professional advisor. During the period under review,
as the performance of the Company for 2010 did not fulfill the
vesting conditions of the share options, apart from the 40% of the
share options being vested, 30% of the share options granted by the
Company on 5 May 2008 were lapsed. For the remaining 30% of
the share options, they will be vested from the fourth anniversary of
the date of grant. In addition, the share options will only be vested
if the respective pre-set performance targets for the Group, grantee’s
department and the grantee are achieved. Otherwise, share options
shall lapse.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

XXVI. Grant and exercise of options (Continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme
during six months ended 30 June 2011:

RESEHRA
Number of share options
KAARE
SEAE
L] RHAH
W1E 0N1E RERZ i hEDE ba i
118 BARE  BARE  BAEE BREN 64308 BEEN (BEEEWR) kR LG
Closing price
of the shares
of the
Company
Exercise period immediately
As at Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed As at Grant of share Exercise  preceding the
Name or category of 1 January during during during during 30 June dateof  options (both priceof  grant date of
SREHZAER participant 2011 theperiod  theperiod  theperiod the period 2011 share options  dates inclusive) ~share options  share options
HKS HK$
Bz Director
BEERE) Mr. PAN Zhengyi "¢ 292471 - - - (146,239) 146,236 05.05.2008 05.05.2010% 337 336
04.05.2015
05.05.2010t0
04.05.2015
FUERE M Mr. WANG Hongjun "2 415532 - - - (124,660) 290,872 05.05.2008 05.05.2010% 337 336
04.05.2015
05.05.20100
04.05.2015
PETAL s, L Xuehua 487451 - - - (146,23)) 26 05052008 05052010 337 336
04.05.2015
05.05.2010t0
04.05.2015
ElEtE Mr. HE Binwu 487,451 - - - (146,23) 341216 05.05.2008 05.05.2010% 337 336
04.05.2015
05.05.2010 to
04.05.2015
)R] Mr. JIANG Nan Yo 421,525 - - - (126,457) 295,068 05.05.2008 05.05.2010% 337 336
04.05.2015
05.05.20100
04.05.2015
2,104,430 - - - (689,822) 1,414,608
EBAH Employee in aggregate 23729 - - S (B04891) 1568035 05052008 (050520102 337 336
04.05.2015
050520100
04.05.2015
a4 Tota 4,477,356 - - - (4T3 2980683
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

XXVI. Grant and exercise of options (Continued)

Note 1: Mr. PAN Zhengyi resigned as a non-executive director, Chairman of the Company,
and a member of Remuneration and Nomination Committee and Investment
Committee on 13 February 2009. 70% of the share options granted to him as
grantee have lapsed. As at 30 June 2011, the remaining 30% of such share
options granted to him remained valid.

Note 2: Mr. WANG Hongjun ceased to be a director of the Company upon the expiry of
his term as a director at the annual general meeting held on 17 June 2011. 30%
of the share options granted to him as grantee have lapsed. As at 30 June 2011,
the remaining 70% of such share options granted to him remained valid.

Note 3: Mr. JIANG Nan ceased to be a director of the Company upon the expiry of his
term as a director at the annual general meeting held on 17 June 2011. 30% of
the share options granted to him as grantee have lapsed. As at 30 June 2011,
the remaining 70% of such share options granted to him remained valid.

XXVIl.Material acquisitions and disposals

On 2 June 2011, Shanghai Chentuo Investment Consultancy
Company Limited (E&8RBIREZMERDF, “Shanghai Chentuo
Investment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
Baogang Resource Company Limited (Zf&/RER A, “Baogang
Resource”) entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to
which Shanghai Chentuo Investment agreed to transfer the entire
equity interest in Shanghai Chentuo Property Company Limited (&
BEWREEARAA, “Shanghai Chentuo Property”) to Baogang
Resource (“Equity Transfer”). The consideration for the Equity Transfer
is approximately RMB933 million, which was determined by the
parties at arm’s length negotiations with reference to the net asset
value of Shanghai Chentuo Property of approximately RMB907 million
as at 19 May 2011 based on a valuation prepared by an independent
valuer. In addition, Baogang Resource agreed to settle, for and on
behalf of Shanghai Chentuo Property, the debt of approximately
RMB609 million due to Beijing Chemsunny Property Company Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant the Debt
Repayment Agreement dated 2 June 2011. The principal assets of
Shanghai Chentuo Property are Building No.1 of Site B of Shanghai
Port International Cruise Terminal Project an office and commercial
building with a gross floor area of 21,406.58 square metres, and 150
basement parking spaces. The Equity Transfer was completed on 17
June 2011. For further details of the Equity Transfer, please refer to
the announcement entitled “Discloseable Transaction — Disposal of
the Entire Equity Interest in Shanghai Chentuo Property” dated 2 June
2011.

XXVIll.Unaudited interim results

The Board is pleased to present the unaudited condensed consolidated
interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2011
together with comparative figures as follows.

The Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young has reviewed the condensed
consolidated interim results of the Group for six months ended 30
June 2011, and issued relevant review report, the details of which are
set out from pages 31 to 58 of this interim report.
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Ernst & Young S
18th Floor HEPIREMESSE

B P & R L 25 1848

EF%: +852 2846 9888
{#E: +852 2868 4432

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
WWW.ey.com

To the board of directors of
Franshion Properties (China) Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

INTRODUCTION

We have reviewed the interim financial information set out on pages
31 to 58, which comprises the condensed consolidated statement
of financial position of Franshion Properties (China) Limited as at
30 June 2011, and the related condensed consolidated income
statement, condensed consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, condensed consolidated statement of changes in equity and
condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for the six-month
period then ended, and explanatory information. The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
require the preparation of a report on interim financial information to
be in compliance with the relevant provisions thereof and Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 34 Interim Financial Reporting ("HKAS 34")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation
of this interim financial information in accordance with HKAS 34.
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this interim financial
information based on our review. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

SCOPE OF REVIEW

We conducted our review in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Review Engagements 2410 Review of Interim Financial Information
Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. A review of
interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying
analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less
in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion.

INTERIM REPORT 2011 FRANSHION PROPERTIES (CHINA) LIMITED
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CONCLUSION

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes
us to believe that the interim financial information is not prepared, in
all material respects, in accordance with HKAS 34.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 August 2011
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HZE2011F6A30H 1L/~ E A

For the six months ended 30 June 2011

H=E=6HA30R1E/~EA
For the six months ended 30 June
i 20114 20104
(REEZ) (REEEZ)
BET T FE T IT
Notes 2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$'000 HK$'000
WA REVENUE 3 1,847,707 4,103,175
SHE R A Cost of sales (732,284) (2,071,370)
EF Gross profit 1,115,423 2,031,805
E U AR Uz Other income and gains 4 2,128,744 692,833
THEME A Selling and marketing expenses (122,838) (97,852)
EEEBH Administrative expenses (346,568) (295,697)
HiE A Other expenses (1,114) (160)
A Bk AN Finance costs 5 (448,531) (281,345)
DR EEREH ' Share of profits and losses of
FMEAnEE jointly-controlled entities 1,878 1,908
430 70 7 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 2,326,994 2,051,492
ST & Income tax expense 7 (612,322) (637,578)
Zs 5 F 58 PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 1,714,672 1,413,914
NHIELERD Attributable to:
SYNCILivES Owners of the parent 1,640,445 1,042,946
JEIZE R Non-controlling interests 74,227 370,968
1,714,672 1,413,914
sl Bl
HK cents HK cents
BRAAEEREZEEA EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
EihERER TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT 9
HIK Basic 17.91 11.38
#E Diluted 15.18 11.38
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BHHEE2E KSR
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZ=201146A30H LE/~{EA  For the six months ended 30 June 2011

H=E=6HA30R1E/~EA
For the six months ended 30 June
e 20114 20104
(REEZ) (REFEIZ)
BT T BT T
Note 2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$’000 HK$'000
A HA 7 PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 1,714,672 1,413,914
Hit 2wk OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
MEBINEBEER Exchange differences on translation of
B W =58 foreign operations 606,613 167,216
ENOEARANTSER Reclassification adjustments for gains
ST ARG E W& included in condensed consolidated
Hy UL income statement in relation to:
FARIBUE AR de-registration of subsidiaries 4 (3,972) (1,895)
HEF AT disposal of a subsidiary 4 4,634 -
AHHE A2 mE W OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
MR E FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX 607,275 165,321
A2 HE N ETR TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD 2,321,947 1,579,235
TGS : Attributable to:
BARIFEE Owners of the parent 2,162,481 1,191,505
FEIZ il fE 2 Non-controlling interests 159,466 387,730
2,321,947 1,579,235
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20114 20104
Hita 6H30H 128318
(REEERZ) (&%)
BET T BT T
30 June 31 December
Notes 2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$’000 HK$'000
kRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BWENRERE Property, plant and equipment 10 6,864,163 6,805,168
BRI Properties under development 13,317,561 12,590,620
R Land under development 11 12,712,235 =
WEYE Investment properties 13,866,965 12,773,590
FEft AR & FK0E Prepaid land lease payments 1,695,713 1,681,584
mILAE Intangible assets 22,880 25,124
R R TR E Investments in jointly-controlled entities 36,500 33,816
FEMIRER Prepayment for investment 1,587,300 1,551,287
EERIBEE Deferred tax assets 41,975 178,588
FERENEEET Total non-current assets 50,145,292 35,639,777
RENEE CURRENT ASSETS
RPN Properties under development 1,357,434 1,050,968
BIEHEYME Properties held for sale 413,907 1,021,153
VR Inventories 35,475 35,196
FEWE SRR Trade receivables 12 120,735 99,497
AR FIE ~ R MEA Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
FEUR 881,091 173,935
JE Y BE5E 5 F I8 Due from related parties 19(b) 10,805 12,936
FEfRH R IE Prepaid tax 97,608 =
PR EISRITAEER Restricted bank balances 96,638 5,390
[REzwEE- Pledged deposits 5,570,810 2,086,791
HEMBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents 13,648,710 11,229,509
MENEERRE Total current assets 22,233,213 15,715,375
FEBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
e B ZEZMEMNZE  Trade and bills payables 13 6,055,761 787,747
E A JE 5 R IB A e 5T R Other payables and accruals 3,524,396 1,441,866
T RIRITE A H AL SR Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 14 15,888,716 7,527,366
FE A 3B 7 708 Due to related parties 19(b) 76,881 86,227
FER TR IR Tax payable 371,218 220,605
FEfTAR B Dividends payable 229,037 =
+ Hh 3% (B T B A Provision for land appreciation tax 355,431 822,594
BB ERE Total current liabilities 26,501,440 10,886,405
B (BE) BEEEH NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (4,268,227) 4,828,970
HEERABEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 45,877,065 40,468,747
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20114 20104
it s 6H30H 12A318
(REEZ) (&5 %)
BET T BT IT
30 June 31 December
Notes 2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$’000 HK$'000
kREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FFEERITERAMEMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 14 14,947,159 10,707,871
FEfSTREsE 5 FIE Due to related parties 19(b) - 1,058,523
EEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 2,280,375 1,983,152
ERBEEELEE Total non-current liabilities 17,227,534 13,749,546
FEE Net assets 28,649,531 26,719,201
R EQUITY
BRATEEEEER Equity attributable to owners of
the parent
BT Issued capital 9,161,489 9,161,489
JKAE B A RS 55 Perpetual convertible securities 4,588,000 4,588,000
fEE Reserves 11,148,274 9,145,970
R AR EAAR B Proposed final dividends - 229,037
24,897,763 23,124,496
FEiE S Non-controlling interests 3,751,768 3,594,705
DA Total equity 28,649,531 26,719,201
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2011F6A30H 1L/~ EA

For the six months ended 30 June 2011

BARKEEER
Attributable to owners of the parent
¢ | hEER RZ EX Rk
BRfRE REEER TEREZ ERRE  BBOR  BERE RERE  REEN  RERR Bt FEMEE REEE
(RE#H) (REBHK) (REER) (REER) (REER) (RESH) (REER) (REER) (REBR) (RESH) (RE2HR) (REEH)
BETn  AMTR  BETR  BMTn  BETn  BETn  BMTR  BMTn  RMTn  BETn  BETn BMTR
PRC
Share  Perpetual statutory Share  Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued  premium convertible  Capital  surplus  option fluctuation Retained final controlling Total
capital  account securities  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  dividend Total interests equity
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
RONEIA1R At 1 January 2011 9,161489 6,109,789 4,588,000 (2,134,134) 290,173 3680 1914978 2961482 229037 23,124,496 3,594,705 26,719,201
KHFE Profit for the period - - - - - - - 1,640,445 - 1,640,445 74201 1,714,672
REEMRENE Other comprehensive income
for the period
REBNEREED Exchange differences on translation
EiZR for foreign operations - - - - - - K134 - - 5374 85239 606,613
= Raus gL e Gain on de-registration of
a subsidiary - - - (1) (2,838) - (3.261) 2,838 - (3,972) - (3.972)
HETATNE Gain on disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - - 4,634 - - 4,634 - 4,634
TR ENELE Total comprehensive income
for the period - - - (1) (2,838) - 522,747 1,643,283 - 2162481 159,466 2,321,947
BER010ERDRE Final 2010 dividend declared - - - - - - - - (229037)  (229,037) - (229,037)
W HEslER Acquisition of non-controlling
interests - - - (1,024) - - - - - (1,024) (2,403) (3,427)
WRDEEARERERE  Equity-settled share option
arrangements - - - - - 870 - - - 870 - 870
WESERRNEZEE  Transfer of share option reserve
EERZHERE upon the forfeiture or expiry
of share options - - - - - (1,486) - - - (1,486) - (1,486)
AETRRERAR Perpetual convertible securites’
distributions - - - - - - - (158,537) - (158,537) - (158,537)
12011564308 At 30 June 2011 9,161,489  6,109,789* 4,588,000 (2,135,869)* 287,335 3,066* 2,437,725% 4,446,228* - 24,897,763 3,751,768 28,649,531

* ZERERBBAERSEMBERRIRANGES *
fEE 5 %11,148,274,0007T (2010612 A31H -
7#1£9,145,970,0007T) °
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(31 December 2010: HK$9,145,970,000) in the condensed consolidated statement of
financial position.
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HZE201196 B30H L/~ EA

For the six months ended 30 June 2011

BARNEEER
Attributable to owners of the parent
REEE kE EX R
BRARE ROEER  ARRE  RHNE  BERE  RBEE  RERN RHRS g HElEE  EREE
(x2h) (REER) (REBR) (KB (REBR) (RE8R) (REER) (REER) (REER) (REER) (R4E%)
AbTr  AkTn  #BBTn  BETn BETn BT BB #ETr AT AT BB
PRC
Share statutory Share  Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued ~ premium Capital surplus option ~fluctuation  Retained final controlling Total
capital account Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve profits ~ dividend Total  interests equity
(Unaudited) ~ (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
01051518 At 1 January 2010 9,161,489 6,109,789 (2134455 266,569 2498 1283901 1,500,817 229,037 16,419,645 1,527,221 17,946,866
RHFR Profit for the period - - - - - - 1,042,906 - 1,049 370968 1,413914
T Other comprehensive income
for the period
RENFEELN Exchange differences on translation
EiZE for foreign operations - - - - - 150454 - - 150,454 16762 167216
b Rl WAl el Gain on de-registration of
a subsidiary - - - - - (1,895) - - (1,89) - (1,89)
THRENEEE Total comprehensive income
for the period = = = = = 148,559 1,042,946 - 1,191,505 387,730 1,579,235
BER00SFRERE  Final 2009 dividend declared - - - - - - - (9031 (29037) - (90)
WEREENRSEETH  Equity-settled share option
arrangements = = = = 574 = = = 574 = 574
FEIRE R Capital contribution from
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - 13,653 13,653
R2010%6 7308 At 30 June 2010 9161489 6,109,789 (2,134,455 266,569 3072 1432460 2,543,763 - 17,382,687 1,928,604 19,311,291
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the six months ended 30 June 2011

HHGEERTRER

HZE2011F6A30H 1L/~ E A

BHZE6H30RLENEA
For the six months ended 30 June
20115 20104
(REER) (REEEZ)
BT BT
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$'000 HK$'000
KRETETANESRETH NET CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (6,518,528) (110,887)
REEE (), EEW NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM
REeEREFE INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,704,824) 9,029
EETEELANBEESFHE NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 10,806,452 824,824
BEMRESESEYIEMNFEE NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,583,100 722,966
HMR SRS ZEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 11,229,509 3,523,274
PR E) R & HEE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 117,673 22,145
HANWRENESZEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF PERIOD 12,930,282 4,268,385
REMBLEBEULERDW ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
R& NERITEE% Cash and bank balances 7,448,911 2,887,720
REESEEREIHA LR Non-pledged time deposits with original
= & A B FEHE IR E BifF R maturity of less than three months
when acquired 3,888,633 1,380,665
RESEHREDHABR Non-pledged time deposits with original
= @ ABIEEREBFER - maturity of over three months when
A R E Sk IR EUE BATE 70 acquired with options to withdraw upon
R IE 2 demand similar to demand deposits 1,592,738 -
BERERMIINBRSM Cash and cash equivalents as stated
IHEZ(EY in the statement of cash flows 12,930,282 4,268,385
RIS E BREEHABGE Non-pledged time deposits with original
=& A e FEE AR E BFER maturity of over three months when
W BT AR E SRR EUE 3 acquired without options to withdraw upon
TFAH B IR demand similar to demand deposits 718,428 —
BT R 2R PR B A 3R & A0 Cash and cash equivalents as stated
HEZEY in the statement of financial position 13,648,710 4,268,385
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BHREE T BHRRME

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. XFER

FEE (FE) GRAR ([ARR]) B
ERFMERZABR AR o A0 A A E
EREVARBEBETEEEIRERESHA
KIEATHEAT02-03%F -

E=ZRR ARANEBERARRREE
AR FEEE (KE) ARAR ([F
E&E])  MARBHNREZERA B RRH
FEARLME ([HE]) KIZOFBEFE
BAw - EREEEARRETEBEEGE
EEEERZEeRBNERARE -

ARRIREFRE ([AEE]) NERXRB
BURN AR A P M S MR RES -

2. MREEREFBER

WA TR BHRRIVBBEETE SR
ERMNBFEGFERN (TEBGTELD)
FE345% [h I I IRE | R

RRAR A P AR R R U T B IEF E I 15 ®R
FETEMEERLIEE  BEEXERE
F2010F 128318 L FEMBIEHRE — HF

B7E -

R2011F6H308  AEBH RS & E
B E R B B E 4B %4,268,227,000
7t (20105F12 8318 : R B & E FE B
#54,828,970,0007T) > FA 1M+ B # R K Jo
RBELERERE  HWIARESFLE
BAEBERK T ZEABRHEKCEERBEE
WIESRRESRE R ARBARITRHELNBE
16,418,140,0007L1% ' RAEASEEARE
CEBIHARE RAFREHRE  ~EEH
BEEEIRITEZHBH1,128,775,0007T © E
HASR 1T & /8 #5145,414,0007T I & 15 #7468
TEFEM1,256,613,0007T °

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Franshion Properties (China) Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office
of the Company is located at Rooms 4702-03, 47/F, Office Tower,
Convention Plaza, Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company of
the Company is Sinochem Hong Kong (Group) Company Limited
(“Sinochem Hong Kong”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong,
and the ultimate holding company of the Company is Sinochem
Group, a company established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"”) and is a state-owned enterprise under the supervision of the
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission in the
PRC.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are described in note 3 to the condensed consolidated
interim financial statements.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The condensed consolidated interim financial statements are prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 34
Interim Financial Reporting issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

The condensed consolidated interim financial statements do not
include all the information and disclosures required in the annual
financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with the
Group's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010.

As at 30 June 2011, the current liabilities of the Group exceeded its
current assets by approximately HK$4,268,227,000 (31 December
2010: net current assets of HK$4,828,970,000). Nevertheless, the
financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis
as the directors believe the Group will have adequate funds to meet
its liabilities as and when they fall due after taking into account
the expected cash flows from its operations in the coming twelve-
month period and unutilised banking facilities of approximately
HK$16,418,140,000. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
the Group repaid bank loans of HK$1,128,775,000, rolled over
bank loans of HK$145,414,000 and obtained new bank loans of
HK$1,256,613,000.

FEWE(RE)ERAR —F——FhERE



2. RBEEERSFBER (#)

BEAETHE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Significant accounting policies

R SR T HEMAN S BRERR The accounting policies and basis of preparation adopted in the
HE2010F12A318 L FE W FE I KR preparation of the interim financial statements are the same as

RFTRANRBEERE - EXE

REE K those used in the annual financial statements for the year ended

AR T ¥R 2% B A B IR ER A DA TR aT 48 31 December 2010, except in relation to the following new and
BEIE A BERELERN ([FEEMBRE E revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which
B BEMEBEAEVBRELED - BE2 include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, HKASs and

FHERI MR BRI

Interpretations) that affect the Group and are adopted for the first
time for the current period’s financial statements:

HKFRS 1 Amendment
BB BHRELERF1FISFTA

Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters

HEBUBMELERNEVREXEKAT B BHEER — BRERAE
IR E BB ERE7 R BB BB T AR EDEHER]

HKAS 24 (Revised)
BRI ERIE 2457 (FHERT)

Related Party Disclosures
BAE T 5

HKAS 32 Amendment
BEGFERIEI2RIEFT AR

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation — Classification
of Rights Issues
HEBSHERNENRSHT A - 25 — HRSBENERT

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendments
BE (BEMBEHRERERZES)
— BEBE14FEITA

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Prepayments of
a Minimum Funding Requirement

HEE (AR BHERELZEY) — 2BF14%
1K & 2 M ETRTHIENER]

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19
EE (BBRYBHREREZE D)
— ZEFE195R

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
RETBEELEERTA

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
2010F BB MR & R eV BUE

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in May 2010
#2010 5 H B a9 2 HE B F IR & 2ERIAVIEET
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2. RBEEERSFBER ()

EXSTEE (H)

BTXE-TRENEE S ERF245%
(£ 127T) RFIA20105 F 8 B 15 3R &5 4 A
MBENHEBMBEHRELAEIN. BB
SR RAF IR LB A ER27HNE
RIRZEIN - BTRINFTR] MRIERT BB M 5
SEANAGBRRLE BERAUBEE -

RS T RIEE A BB B 2R
EBYEMT -

EEGHERIE245 (FEFT) BB AL
METHES TR ANERNEEERE
R — BT R —BAFAT S - HEZER K
BRESAFENNERETRS @ ATERS
AR RRE T R o

R20104E5 A 98 #5 920104 & & B 7 3R &
AR RS E T EBY B REENE
7l e REREBIUBEBR - BERMHET
BRI RS RRMEE - HEBHZS
EBIIBTeHAEFELEAYKYE - &
BAAEENEEEFIFEBOT

(a) BEUBRELRIEIRELS G - WA
BAEMBRELEYFETHR - BAEGTER
FI2W R BB G ERIFEISEAEET A
HEHRXAKENRE Y TEAREK
REBHBHRE LTI (R2008F &
EFT) ARV U B PR 1T RIS frrosk
ARAE -

BN RFEFTRIARFERIREL IS
R EETT Al RS B ERT B IR R HI 4
mAEE  REIEEARIRMAEER
MEFRERE THEARLIDEER
HFEEMSEE G SR o BRIEE b
BEVMBREEAREFTRAEMETE
% SRR HI RS A R R D A5 AU
BEI R FERTE °

ZEEET I IMABR XI5 - AR B R
R Ko B FEER AR Y DA B 19 45 BB B9 1~ 3K
RENETEENN

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of HKAS
24 (Revised) and amendments to HKFRS 3, HKAS 1 and HKAS 27
included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2010, the adoption of the new
and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.

The principle effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as
follows:

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definitions of related
parties. It also provides for a partial exemption of related party
disclosure to government-related entitles for transactions with the
same government or entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by the same government.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2070 issued in May 2010 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. There are separate transitional
provisions for each standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments results in changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments has had a significant financial impact on the Group.
Details of the key amendments most applicable to the Group are as
follows:

(a) HKFRs 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that the amendments to
HKFRS 7, HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 that eliminate the exemption for
contingent consideration do not apply to contingent consideration
that arose from business combinations whose acquisition dates
precede the applicable of HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendments limit the measurement choice of
non-controlling interests at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets to components of
non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation. Other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by another
HKFRS.

The amendments also added explicit guidance to clarify the
accounting treatment for non-replaced and voluntarily replaced
share-based payment awards.

FEWE(RE)ERAR —F——FhERE



2. RBEEERSFBER (#)

AEFHBE (B)

(b) BB ENBIRIBEHRRNEZES
WEAEESSKOMEMEEERED
M AR EES )RR K EHRERM T
I

() BRESHERLFE27TRES LBV
Z&  BRAAEB G ERIFE275% (582008
FRAEE]) HEB S ERFE215% - &
/EEE+/§E|J%ZSFE E/EED+EE|J;’%31
SRETIEH 1R BIEE] TR HAE R 200947 A
1B BB FE SR HARERS
O EREIRE (MERURRE
BAE) ER o

3. I%«(M/'\aﬂﬁ*gl_

HEBEMES - AEERAEFFRRENE R R
RSB D EBEL - HAEER 2WMEE S
HBLATR -

(a) MEREDI - WEMERERIFE

(b) MEBENH : Et
B

EFERERAME

(c) BEKEDER :
%R

P OB 5 (78 & E 8RR

urﬁmjﬂm ITRENETE - RS
EERY SEBLE SNESR
%Hﬁuﬁﬁ%%o

ERESMEIRD B KRB AEIRE
FBS 1 Kﬁlﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂmiia o DERRIRTY
Al 28 B NETRE - U IRBE R
BB A ﬂﬂ qui o RTHBB A B E R
REERAAEESNT R BB EPALE
AEASRITHI BMA ~ R E WS R E B K
AIAR 5B R Kt R A BERA ST

DHEETEEBREHRREE  ANHEA -
EERER  XBRHRTES  ReMNBL
SENREBREMRDEEE - REZNK
LEEREEEMER -

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b) HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies that an
analysis of other comprehensive income for each component of
equity can be presented either in the statement of changes in
equity or in the notes to the financial statements.

(c) HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements: Clarifies
that the consequential amendments from HKAS 27 (as revised in
2008) made to HKAS 21, HKAS 28 and HKAS 31 shall be applied
prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
or earlier if HKAS 27 is applied earlier.

3. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has four reportable
operating segments as follows:

(a) the property development segment develops and sells properties;

(b) the property leasing segment leases office and commercial
premises;

(c) the hotel operations segment provides hotel accommodation
services, food and beverage; and

(d) the “others” segment mainly comprises the provision of property
management, design and decoration services, the operation of
an observation deck, the trading of goods, and the provision of
export agency services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that bank
interest income, other investment income and finance costs as well
as corporate and other unallocated expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, prepaid tax, pledged
deposits, restricted bank balances, cash and cash equivalents and
corporate and other unallocated assets as these assets are managed
on a group basis.
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3. REHTFER (&)

3. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTINUED)

BZE20115F6H30H L@ A For the six months ended 30 June 2011
MR NERE BELE Hit agt
(REER) (REER)  (REBER)  (RBBR)  (REEHK)
BETT BETR BRI BB BETT
Property Property Hotel
development leasing  operations Others Total
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WA : Segment revenue:
MIEEFEE Sales to external customers 6,709 492,141 1,084,372 264,485 1,847,707
DEEEE Intersegment sales - - 18,159 19,611
6,709 493,593 1,084,372 282,644 1,867,318
ik Reconciliation:
DEEIEEHH Elimination of intersegment sales (19,611)
Ot Total revenue 1,847,707
AREE Segment results 1,065,955 1,233,263 346,457 43172 2,688,847
i Reconciliation:
PEEEELE Elimination of intersegment results (4,460)
FATFBHA Bank interest income 142,511
A RA KR Other investment income 1,031
BRREMRAERE Corporate and other unallocated expenses (52,404)
AR Finance costs (448,531)
FEIRNE Profit before tax 2,326,994

FEWE(PER) BRI
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3. REHTFER (&)

HZE2010%F6 A30H (L7~ A

For the six months ended 30 June 2010

3. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTINUED)

mERE ELiN BEEE Hith b
(REER) (REER)  (REER)  (REE%)  (RE8R)
BRI BETT BB BETT BT
Property Property Hotel
development leasing operations Others Total
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) ~ (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
YA : Segment revenue:
mMINEEFHE Sales to external customers 2,373,184 428,822 1,007,290 293,879 4,103,175
DEPEHE Intersegment sales - 1,172 - 7,629 8,801
2,373,184 429,994 1,007,290 301,508 4,111,976
ik Reconciliation:
DEEIEEHH Elimination of intersegment sales (8,801)
WABE Total revenue 4,103,175
AREE Segment results 1,016,581 927,954 276,194 30,793 2,251,522
#E Reconciliation:
DEEEELH Elimination of intersegment results (338)
RFSMA Bank interest income 131,718
HipE e Other investment income 579
BEREMRIERS Corporate and other unallocated expenses (50,644)
BERK Finance costs (281,345)
FEIRNE Profit before tax 2,051,492
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3. REHTFER (&)

3. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTINUED)

K2011%66H30H At 30 June 2011
MERS NERE BERE Hfth @t
(REER) (REER) (RISER) (RISER) (REEER)
BRI BRI BRI BETT BT
Property Property Hotel
development leasing  operations Others Total
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PHEE Segment assets 34,027,440 14,009,132 9,751,310 731,721 58,519,603
i Reconciliation:
DB EHH Elimination of intersegment assets (5,730,963)
ERLEMASREE Corporate and other unallocated assets 19,589,865
HEE Total assets 72,378,505
®20104F12831H At 31 December 2010
MERE NEHE BECE Hith @it
(B21) (BZ8) (B8%) (E8%) (E21)
BT BETT BET T BRI T BET T
Property Property Hotel
development leasing operations Others Total
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PHEE Segment assets 17,348,506 12,961,498 8,491,288 640,112 39,441,404
Hhk Reconciliation:
NEEEEHE Elimination of intersegment assets (5,977,264)
ERLEMASREE Corporate and other unallocated assets 17,891,012
BERE Total assets 51,355,152
FEME(PR)ARAT =T —FHHRE



4. E g A Mz 4. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

HZ6A30HENEA
For the six months ended 30 June
FtaE 201145 20104
(REEEZX) (REEEZ)
BT T BT T
Note 2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$'000 HK$'000
Hpug A Other income
RITH S WA Bank interest income 142,511 131,718
HA % & Wz Other investment income 1,031 579
143,542 132,297
& Gains
& F R RIES Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 15 1,137,510 =
REMENDFE R Fair value gains on investment properties 785,996 537,379
PE X =5 F5E Foreign exchange differences, net 47,599 4,608
BUBFEMF 2 ik as Gain on de-registration of subsidiaries 3,972 1,895
Hib Others 10,125 16,654
1,985,202 560,536
2,128,744 692,833
5. BLE A 5. FINANCE COSTS
HZE6A308 LA
For the six months ended 30 June
20114 20104
(REERZ) (RE&EZ)
BT T BT T
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$’000 HK$'000
ARRERNEHEEN Interest on bank loans and debenture
RITERNEERNE wholly repayable within five years 461,558 300,346
BRAFI HEER Interest on bank loans and debenture
WITERMESFE wholly repayable over five years 120,078 101,664
FERR R TR ZIEFE Interest on an amount due to a fellow subsidiary 39,707 25,586
RN B R A R IE RS Interest on an amount due to
the immediate holding company 7,863 -
MBS B8 Total interest expense 629,206 427,596
W BAEF A Less: Interest capitalised (180,675) (146,251)
448,531 281,345
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6. Bi A1 FE 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

AEENTATFEE MR TY)EE The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging:
HZE6H308 LE/NEA
For the six months ended 30 June
20114 20104
(REHFX) (REEZ)
BET T BEET T
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$'000 HK$'000
[SE-LEIDW:N Cost of properties sold 2,939 1,341,178
e Depreciation 108,479 104,943
ER A ETE B Amortisation of intangible assets 3,422 3,174
HRIEN L HE A Recognition of prepaid land lease payments 24,588 23,708
HEME - BKE & Loss on disposal of items of property,

HEIEE BB plant and equipment* 1,028 160
FEUNE SR 2 RE* Impairment of trade receivables* 86 =
* ZEBEBAGHSGEKRERATHEMER] B *  These items are included in “Other expenses” on the face of the condensed

T consolidated income statement.
7. hBHREH 7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
HZE6H308 1L/~ A
For the six months ended 30 June
20114 20104
(REHFX) (CREEZ)
BT T BEET T
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEA Current
R ERER PRC corporate income tax 225,601 367,751
AR R £ H 3 (E R PRC land appreciation tax 172 203,758
225,773 571,509
R Deferred 386,549 66,069
NEATRIE S 4858 Total tax charge for the period 612,322 637,578
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7. hEHRER ©)

FEHE

R HIA AR B Y B AR B E L T ERY
B (2010%F : &) MY J|FFIRBFAENE
TR

i Ef 1 T3
FRECERSHRIDIEANEENTETRRN
JE AR R B AT R 25% (20104F @ 25%) &F
TR o

RIEAR P BFTS A E AR - R
R ESRREIE DRI ERRAETA
SEFREFRANRAIZRCEMBSHE
B E - S ERRIREZE2011F6H308 1E
ANERBIZRBEMNR2A%E AN EFTEH
(20104 : 22%) * BEBR2012F I K A
25% o ANEE Bk ST M L 1A VT AR T A IR K R
BIEERERMNETHETRARANSIRESR
ME24% BN EEN - BRE EERNE
ErEERREANZIRE  WHREERE
FERBFHEET -

REE20114F6A308 IEXER » D1HHF
PRI E R IER X A %626,0007T (2010
£ : B¥580,0007T) - BET ABRLR S W
DG HERZEHEEFEMER] ET -

e+ R EH ([ LB EH )

RIER 199441 A1 B A KA EE AR EAE
T+ E R E TR MBI LA & R 199541 A27H
SRR R EE AR AN L i 1 (B B 1T R
BB RE - BH1994F1 1L &F
BAPEEEEEMEEENMERE - 5
AT T EEMIGESR D (AL EMEMS
RERBIEEEXRAMAEDERE S HE
ARA BB H) ENF30%E60%H R
R E - G T ER -

8. BE
R20MEF8H22RRTHNESERH L &

FFARD A BRI E A S (2010
FE) o

7. INCOMEN TAX EXPENSE (conTINUED)

Hong Kong profits tax

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the period (2010: Nil).

PRC corporate income tax

PRC corporate income tax has been provided at the rate of 25%
(2010: 25%) on the taxable profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC income tax rules and regulations,
preferential corporate income tax rates have been granted to certain
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries which were established and located
in Shanghai Pudong New Area and Shenzhen Special Economic Zone,
respectively. These companies are subject to a preferential rate of
24% for the six months ended 30 June 2011 (2010: 22%) followed
by the tax rate of 25% in 2012. Certain Group’s PRC subsidiaries,
which were established and located in Hainan Special Economic Zone
and Zhuhai Special Economic Zone, are subject to corporate income
tax at a preferential rate of 24% and are entitled to full exemption
from the corporate income tax for the first profitable year and a 50%
reduction in the corporate income tax rate in the following two years.

The share of tax expenses attributable to jointly-controlled entities for
the six months ended 30 June 2011 amounting to HK$626,000 (2010:
HK$580,000) is included in “Share of profits and losses of jointly-
control entities” in the condensed consolidated income statement.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of the
PRC on LAT (ffZE A B H A £ 3 1% (E 5 & 1716 5) effective from
1 January 1994, and the Detailed Implementation Rules on the
Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT (FfZE A R H AN+ 1% (E
FE/TIEHE e AR R) effective from 27 January 1995, all gains arising
from a transfer of real estate property in Mainland China effective
from 1 January 1994 are subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds from sale of properties less deductible expenditures including
borrowing costs and all property development expenditures.

8. DIVIDEND

At a meeting of the board of directors held on 22 August 2011, the
directors resolve not to pay an interim dividend to shareholders (2010:
Nil).
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9. AT ERERITHE AR 9. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

BRER ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
GIRERE AR THR BB N 8 F AR 5 The calculation of basic earnings per share amount for the period
PN/ N L S N E?"ﬂ & i X is based on the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity
hn #E S 5 09,161,489, 489Hx (20104 : holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary
9,161,489,489% ) er shares of 9,161,489,489 (2010: 9,161,489,489) in issue during the

period.

SIEERFRIE S DR BRESEA A The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount for the period

RIS RNEE A E - s ERERN T

FRR N is based on the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity

BFOARANFEGRERBNNHAE holders of the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary
BOIEBREE  ARBIRAEEKETR shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
I B AR AR A TR TR T BN during the period, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,

IR o and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued on the deemed conversion of the Group’s perpetual
convertible securities into ordinary shares.

BRERREERN TREBEATEIRHE - The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on:

HZE6A30R LA A
For the six months ended 30 June
20115 20104
(REEER) (REEEZ)
BT T BT T
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$000 HK$'000
BEF| Earnings
REsTESREARF 2 A Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
I %Hﬂ&ﬁnhﬁ/\f(ﬁ@ﬂ of the parent used in the basic earnings
per share calculation 1,640,445 1,042,946
Mt &8
Number of shares
BE6A3081EAEA
For the six months ended 30 June
20115 20104
(RBEZ) (REg#EZ)
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
IR 4% Shares
BEsTE SRR ERNEF A EI A Weighted average number of ordinary shares
BT E @R INET I E in issue during the period used in the basic
earnings per share calculation 9,161,489,489 9,161,489,489
BExE - RN Effect of dilution — weighted average
HNRE L - number of ordinary shares:

KB R R

Perpetual convertible securities 1,644,763,250 -

10,806,252,739 9,161,489,489

10.9% - BERRZE
#H =2011F6H308 (£ /~18 A -

10.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

N &= H During the six months ended 30 June 2011, the Group acquired items

BEWME WERHZEIER E’],ﬁ@ﬁk$7%,%ﬁ§ of property, plant and equipment at a total cost of HK$12,158,000
12,158,0007T (20104 : & #17,369,000 (2010: HK$17,369,000) and disposed of or wrote off items of

JT) > M & SEE Y % J@}%&

S E1E R property, plant and equipment with a total net carrying amount of

B BR mOF B & 8 #1,702,0005T (2010 HK$1,702,000 (2010: HK$603,000).

£ ##603,0007T) ©
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R IR RO E N B R AR % B Y
elFWoR R ([RE]) ALl Em A
WEMEERNEMATMEERNAS - & &
7N 52 [ 3 SR VR 7B R4 L 30 B PR M SR 3t i R
B AEEERERZBEENIHEZEA
ABRERBETREERBRELIRE - BT H
R EZEHERE - NREBEHES 7B
WER LIRS ER o

11.LAND UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Land under development represents the land requisition cost,
compensation cost and other preliminary infrastructure costs in
relation to Changsha Meixi Lake International Service and Technology
Innovation City project (the “Project”). Though the Group does not
have ownership title or land use right to such land, the Group is given
the right to carry out construction and preparation works in respect of
land infrastructure and ancillary public facilities in the Project. When
the land plots are sold by the local government, the Group is entitled
to receive from the local authorities the land development fee.

12.EBWE 5 BRX 12.TRADE RECEIVABLES
20114 20104
6H30H 12A31H
(REEZ) (&E%)
BT T BEEF T
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEUE SRR Trade receivables 121,974 100,624
VRIE] Impairment (1,239) (1,127)
120,735 99,497

EHENENREDRZABEEEBRNG
AT - HAAEBREZPpIRMUEE -
KEMEMRBENESGREEREER
R EBEHEFP-—RFEBRENR - EEH—
Be—EA mMEEXPARERE=EA -
BEEPHRAERBEER -

AR B B PR B 4 1R ELOREUE R UK
YR EEZEGEH BEERARRE &
K- -2REEEEHBRMBHEH - EX L
MEIE - AR RSB EYE SRS R
ETRBHER  #EERBRNETEEY
PERE - BREZERISTFRE -

Consideration in respect of properties sold is payable in accordance
with the terms of the related sale and purchase agreements, whilst the
Group's trading terms with its customers in relation to the provision of
hotel, decoration and other services are mainly on credit, except for
new customers, where payment in advance is normally required. The
credit period is generally one month, extending up to three months
for major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is
no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.
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NEWEZRR &) 12.TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

RIPEHR - FEINE 5 EE TR RB L= B W An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the

BEES AT ¢ reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
20114 20104
6H30H 12A31H
(REERZ) (5= %)
BT T BT
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$'000 HK$'000
EER Within 1 month 74,525 63,033
12318 A 1 to 3 months 17,800 17,407
4% 6{8 A 4 to 6 months 17,731 8,610
6@ A LA Over 6 months 10,679 10,447
120,735 99,497
BENEZERERMNENSEZE 13.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
RI|EEAR - BN E FRAMNENZIRIZR An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the
BEHHMERE ST reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
20115 20104
6H30H 12A31H
(REER) (B=Z)
BT T BT T
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$'000 HK$'000
1FARNSIZZKEE Within 1 year or on demand 5,995,708 729,877
15825 1 to 2 years 4,783 35,474
2&34%F 2 to 3 years 44,018 20,333
3FLAE Over 3 years 11,252 2,063
6,055,761 787,747
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14. 5T BRITEFMEMER

AERITERREMERBERARGZE T
ANAFEBERBRARN2011F48158 %
177K & 44 %8 /3500,000,000% 7T (& R %
#%3,887,965,0007T) MEE - RIRIEEER
17 BEERX KA RB29,848,0007T °

ZEEMARAER XIEFF E6.75%
B #51R2021F4815HEIH -

15.HEFLH

14.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Included in the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are notes
with aggregate principal amount of US$500,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$3,887,965,000) issued by Franshion Development Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, on 15 April 2011. The
notes were issued at par and the direct transaction costs attributable
to the notes amounted to HK$29,848,000.

The notes are guaranteed by the Company, interest-bearing at 6.75%
per annum and will mature on 15 April 2021.

15.DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

HZE6H308 1L/~ A
For the six months ended 30 June
FtaE 20114 20104
(REEX) (REgEZ)
BT T BT T
Note 2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTH &/ F&E Net assets disposed of:
R Properties under development 689,107 -
B MBS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,303 =
691,410 -
HEFAEE Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 4 1,137,510 =
MBI INERG E A 1) Release of exchange differences on
[E 5 Z=ZA#E (o] translation of foreign operations 4,634
1,833,554 -
ZRAR Satisfied by:
Re Cash 1,833,554 -

REETFRRANBEEMESEEBYRATER
DT :

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:

HeRE Cash consideration 1,833,554 =
It EMREMREEFEY Cash and cash equivalents
disposed of (2,303) —

HEFRARNIBEELMIBELEEY  Net inflow of cash and cash
AR equivalents in respect of the
disposal of a subsidiary 1,831,251 -
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16.REEE

RREHER  NEBERAEBETYEE
R R IE R A IR AE A %32,594,0007T
(2010124318 @ 7 #45,531,0007T) A
ER -

17.8EHERH
AEERBGERELTHAAARTEY
¥ MEMBTAEAF -

RB|ERR - ARERBEIAIRELCEHE
RTFHREE S AR RERS N REED

16. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has provided
guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities for certain purchasers of
the Group's properties amounting to approximately HK$32,594,000
(31 December 2010: HK$45,531,000).

17.0PERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging
from one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

T ¢ falling due as follows:
20115 20104
6H30H 12A31H
(RBERZ) (HEZ)
BT T BT
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 4,983 5,449
FE-ZFERFT  BEEEMF In the second to fifth years, inclusive 2,051 3,691
7,034 9,140

18. I
PR KR - Ak B THIEAESE -

18. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments as at the end of
the reporting period:

20114 20104
6H30H 12A31H
(REER) (&&EZ)
BT T BT T
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI 4B RIRERE Contracted, but not provided for
BEAPYE Properties under development 3,526,295 1,759,773
BEREP Land under development 1,134,887 =
TR ER Prepayment for investment 1,100,288 1,075,285
5,761,470 2,835,058

FEWE(RE)ERAR —F——FhERE



19.BELHE
(a) X EER AR B E 5 1T T %1

19.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) The Group had the following material transactions

BAXS : with related parties during the period:
HZE6A308L~EA
For the six months ended 30 June
Mt 20114 20104
(REEX) (REFEZ)
BT T BB T T
Notes 2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$'000 HK$'000
RZRFRA] : Fellow subsidiaries:
e WA Rental income (i) 91,979 76,009
YEEEEBIA Property management fee income (i) 8,998 8,226
H A R FG A Other service income (ii) 14,433 40
MERX Interest expense (iii) 39,707 25,586
HEERAQR : The immediate holding company:
MEY Interest expense (iii) 7.863 =
HEFX Rental expense (iv) 1,632 1,220
FEER AR The intermediate holding company:
HEBHA Rental income 0] 35,901 33,453
MEEBEEWA Property management fee income (i) 4,068 3,434
R AT The ultimate holding company
HE WA Rental income (i) 4,097 4,497
L ERREE= T PN Property management fee income (i) 206 261
Bifat - Notes:
() MEWARMEERBWRATIRANEBEKRNT (i) The rental income and property management fee income were charged at terms

(iv)

ETRRFAF  RRERATRZKEZERAR
YL A AR A 195 o O ERSRURCER

REEIRRH T 5 =77 RS G E A R 7%
A e
RNARRAERERARRBARFARANEME

RO F BB SR SRS RO RTT BB R H0BR -

HERXTIRARREE FER A RR A H %
RO ERHIRR ©

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

INTERIM REPORT 2011

pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into by the Group with certain fellow
subsidiaries, the intermediate holding company and the ultimate holding company of
the Company.

The other service income was charged by the Group on terms similar to those offered
to third parties.

The interest expenses on other loans due to the immediate holding company and a
fellow subsidiary of the Company were charged at the interest rates of bank loans

with similar terms.

The rental expense was charged on terms pursuant to the agreement entered into by
the Company and the immediate holding company of the Company.

FRANSHION PROPERTIES (CHINA) LIMITED
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19.BEHIKE &)

19.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (conTinueD)

(b) BEEEE 5 B 45 65 (b)Outstanding balances with related parties
Mt 20114 20104
6H30H 12H31H
(REEX) (T %)
BT T BT T
Note 30 June 31 December
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$'000 HK$'000
JRE L A 2 5 RO Due from related parties:
S Sl NG Ultimate holding company (i) 15 28
H R A A Intermediate holding company (i) 2,809 4,262
EES/NGI Fellow subsidiaries (i) 4,722 2,345
HEEHIE S Jointly-controlled entities (i) 3,259 6,301
10,805 12,936
et 20114 20104F
6H30H 12H31H
(REBEZ) (&#=Z)
BT T BT T
Note 30 June 31 December
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$'000 HK$'000
JE ST RAE 77 78 Due to related parties:
S S NE] Ultimate holding company (i) 2,898 3,396
H R A R Intermediate holding company (i) 20,010 18,799
HEERAA Immediate holding company (i) - 1,065,208
RRFAA] Fellow subsidiaries (i) 52,713 50,614
HEEHIE S Jointly-controlled entities (i) 1,260 6,733
76,881 1,144,750
MENEL 5 Current potion (76,881) (86,227)
FEMENER 7 Non-current potion - 1,058,523
HifaE Note:

() #HbhERM . 28 RKRERMEE - K210
F12A318 ENERXRZERAARELR
1,058,523,000 T A fEER - IR=1E A BIFRTA
EREFEM2%:TE - WAR20126F12H31H
AIEE - ZSERBANCEEHREE -

54

(0)

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand. At 31
December 2010, there was an amount due to the immediate holding company of
HK$1,058,523,000 which was unsecured, interest-bearing at three-month LIBOR plus
2% and was repayable at any time not later than 31 December 2012. The amount
has been fully paid during the period.

FEWE(PE)ARAE —T——FPHRE



19.BEEFEE &) 19.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b) BEBHE 5 BI4E6R (58) (b)Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)
FtaE 20114 20104
6H30H 12A31H
(REEZ) (&%)
BT T BT T
Note 30 June 31 December
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEER: Interest-bearing loan:
RRFAR] A fellow subsidiary (ii) 2,044,250 470,080
(i) FEpfEE —FHEFEARRITIHESS BIE (i) The balance represents loans borrowed from a fellow subsidiary, which is a
BORRTFRARMEROER . BERTIEE financial institution approved by the People’s Bank of China. The loans are non-
SME mER REFNEN F4.860%% trade in nature, unsecured, bear interests ranging from 4.860% to 6.400% per
6.400%=T B - W ZER2012F2 A £20124F7 annum and are repayable between February 2012 and July 2012.
AMEE -
(c) XEBFEEE NS HRB (c) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group
HZE6H308 L/~ EA
For the six months ended 30 June
20114 20104
(REEZR) (REEFEZ)
BT T BT T
2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$'000 HK$'000
CHIEEER Short term employee benefits 11,498 8,150
BEBL 2 1R A Post-employment benefits 123 142
A% 15 45 S I = EAE B =2 Equity-settled share option expense 360 203
TRHFETEEERAEN Total compensation paid to
Bl FSEE] key management personnel 11,981 8,495

INTERIM REPORT 2011 FRANSHION PROPERTIES (CHINA) LIMITED
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19.BEHIKE &)

(d)EEEMEBLF:HIX S

AREBERZ P EBFES - WHERPBER
FEBTR%E BHEBEASXELEER
EIHEREAEFNEE (BB BAD
X)) XEMKBERRETRE - MR- KE
BEEMEALEETRS BERETRR
B8 73 HECREDE RHWEHR
EREERE  ARREHRD R - AQA
EERA ERAAKRERRFHABEELE
RERZPEBRFEGSES  BEEMEA
CEMETHHRERZIHRBEEHBESR
ETHNERE BARARXEAXTHLRENTE -
A ER B 7 ELE om B AR R FE TE (B RGR 0 T
ZEEEBRRALFPRNEFZRE REA D
X KREHEREZBMAENALER  ARAES
RE - BEXFBRTBRNASRTIELREN
EXBETRS -

19.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(d)Transaction with other state-owned enterprises

The Group is indirectly controlled by the PRC government and
operates in an economic environment predominated by entities
directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the government through
its agencies, affiliates or other organisations (collectively “State-owned
Entities” (“SOEs"”)). During the period, the Group had transactions
with other SOEs including, but not limited to, borrowings, deposits,
sale of properties developed, provision of property lease and
management service and the provision of sub-contracting services.
The directors of the Company consider that these transactions with
other SOEs are activities conducted in the ordinary course of business
and that the dealings of the Group have not been significantly or
unduly affected by the fact that the Group and the other SOEs are
ultimately controlled or owned by the PRC government. The Group
has also established pricing policies for its products and services and
such pricing policies do not depend on whether or not the customers
are SOEs. Having due regard to the substance of the relationships,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that none of these
transactions are material related party transactions that require
separate disclosures.

FEWE(RE)ERAR —F——FhERE



0. AFERAFELREE 20.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

ArEEERITANKEERAFERT The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments are as follows:
REE AFE
Carrying amounts Fair values
20114 20105 20115 2010F
6A30H 12A31H 6830H 12H31H

(REER) (BEZ)  (REEK) (=)
BETT BETT BETR BETT

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2011 2010 2011 2010
(Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SHEE Financial assets

BREER Prepayment for investment 1,587,300 1,551,287 1,587,300 1,551,287
JEYE 5 BRI Trade receivables 120,735 99,497 120,735 99,497

FABRMRIE - ZEM Financial assets included in prepayments,

HtERRMEREE deposits and other receivables 668,077 87,096 668,077 87,096
e B T A Due from related parties 10,805 12,936 10,805 12,936
XRHRITEE Restricted bank balances 96,638 5,390 96,638 5,390
[EEARUYEEA Pledged deposits 5,570,810 2,086,791 5,570,810 2,086,791
ReMReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 13,648,710 11,229,509 13,648,710 11,229,509

21,703,075 15,072,506 21,703,075 15,072,506
LRER Financial liabilities
BHEZERREE Trade and bills payables 6,055,761 787,747 6,055,761 787,747
AR FIER Financial liabilities included in

B RENERAE other payables and accruals 773,575 1,044,130 773,575 1,044,130
FEIT BEE A 3R IE Due to related parties 76,881 1,144,750 76,881 1,144,750
AERTEFREMER Interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings 30,835,875 18,235,237 30,835,875 18,235,237

37,742,092 21,211,864 37,742,092 21,211,864
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0. 2 FERAFESRE &)

RSB RIESN - SHAERABNHA
FERM BTS2 METRAEZ S
KBS - A THRRBRE ARG 2
Fi -

ReMASEEY CDEAEZR  XRHIE
1THES - BRE SRR  BNESERN - &
AFRMFIE - ReMEMERFTOERE
E - BAARER st AEAMEN RN ER
FEM SR A EEEW RIS BRIER
R REKEEAZES  REEUE
TABREHRNEH -

e RRET RIANER BB D KAt BRITE
AR EMERNIERBDEDNRFEDER
B RIBE GR - EE R R &R &R 2 2 HIR A
AUt TRARENITRXFRBARRES

Pl g
TETHE o

RBERR  AEELEZAFEAEDH
BELEE -

21. P EA R S R AV HE A

ANEERAERE PR SRR 20114F8H22H
EEESHELRETIIT

20.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
(CONTINUED)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

Cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, restricted bank
balances, trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, prepayment for
investment, financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
and the current portion of amounts due from/to related parties
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the non-current portion of amounts due to related
parties and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments on similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no financial assets
or liabilities measured at fair value.

21.APPROVAL OF THE INTERIM FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

These condensed consolidated interim financial statements were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22
August 2011.

FEWE(RE)ERAR —F——FhERE
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OTHER INFORMATION

MR2011F68308 KR BEER KA
20,000,000,000% Ei@A% : B BT A4REE
739,161,489,489 % L@ A% o

ERRE
FERRE

BAXNBZEEA R2011F6H308 @ &

ARREEREFRANTEI

AT ALERA

REB D HARREAD P A RIE (FEHF RS
BB EXVEBE2R3E 0 AR AR A
B dARETRBRE(GESF AT EHD)
FEIB6FEREMFENECMPRLE X
Mg ARNE NIRRT i RORR

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 30 June 2011, the authorised share capital of the Company was
20,000,000,000 ordinary shares and the total issued share capital was
9,161,489,489 ordinary shares.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

So far as is known to the directors of the Company, as at 30 June
2011, the following persons (other than the directors and chief
executive officer of the Company) had interests and short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), or which were
required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register of the Company referred to therein, or which had already
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

LERTRE

ZBHBAN

Approximate

e/ %E &/ EnkE LERYE  percentage of

Long/short  Capacity/nature Number of the issued

TERRER Name of the substantial shareholder position of interests ordinary shares share capital

BILES Sinochem Hong Kong 8 EREAA 5,759,881,259 62.87%

Long position  Beneficial owner

PEAERHERAT Sinochem Corporation 78 REHIA R M 5,759,881,259 62.87%
Long position  Interest of corporation controlled %"

EALERRA Sinochem Group e REHIA AR M 5,759,881,259 62.87%
Long position  Interest of corporation controlled "

Earn Max Enterprises Limited ~ Earn Max Enterprises Limited e ERBEAA 548,254,417 5.98%

Long position  Beneficial owner

Warburg Pincus Private Equity ~ Warburg Pincus Private Equity X, LD~ #78 RS AR R e 548,254,417 5.98%
X, LP. Long position  Interest of corporation controlled %2

Warburg Pincus X, L.P. Warburg Pincus X, L.P. A R AR R ) 548,254,417 5.98%
Long position  Interest of corporation controlled 7

Warburg Pincus X, LLC Warburg Pincus X, LLC e REHARRER ) 548,254,417 5.98%
Long position  Interest of corporation controlled %2

Warburg Pincus Partners LLC ~ Warburg Pincus Partners LLC e SRR AR () 548,254,417 5.98%
Long position  Interest of corporation controlled *¢?

Warburg Pincus & Co. Warburg Pincus & Co. 259 TR AR ) 548,254,417 5.98%

INTERIM REPORT 2011

Long position  Interest of corporation controlled 2
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ERlE @)

FERRER (#)

br EXFTE BRI ARARESIETMEBA
AT (RRFEZFRERHTERIN B
2011F6 A30B AR AR D AR 59

A - BE(ESFRHEED) EXVEE2R
3EMBRAR TR - HAERARREIRIE
(BEHERBPERN) F336EREMFENE
st hacsk - KEMERAT BT 2

ffed—  hER EEEARESTREP R ARA
A98%HI B N - M BEF(EBRHARA
AEATEENEDRNER  REHR
HEGHMMmE - PREAPCEEARMP RS
EBRMBERATDHRERR LR BE RS
BERERBANRODHAERER -

Kt = : Earn Max Enterprises Limited#796.90% 9%
Bz AWarburg Pincus Private Equity X,
L.P. ¥7% + fiWarburg Pincus Private Equity
X, L.P. & HWarburg Pincus & Co. B
Warburg Pincus Partners LLC * Warburg
Pincus X, LLC K& Warburg Pincus X, L.P. (5
fiWarburg Pincus & CoEE S EH# T2
=) ERES - MEFRBEKAmE
Warburg Pincus & Co. Warburg Pincus
Partners LLC * Warburg Pincus X, LLC -
Warburg Pincus X, L.P. K&Warburg Pincus
Private Equity X, L.P. 948 AR Ll FTA B
Earn Max Enterprises LimitedEz5# A M%
DA °

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2011, the directors of the
Company were not aware of any person (other than the directors
and chief executive officer of the Company) had interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register of the Company
referred to therein, or which had already been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Note 1: Sinochem Group holds 98% equity interests in Sinochem Corporation, which
in-turn holds the entire equity interests in Sinochem Hong Kong. For the purpose
of the SFO, Sinochem Group and Sinochem Corporation are both deemed to be
interested in the shares beneficially owned by Sinochem Hong Kong.

Note 2: Earn Max Enterprises Limited is 96.90% controlled by Warburg Pincus Private
Equity X, L.P., which is ultimately wholly controlled by Warburg Pincus & Co.
through Warburg Pincus Partners LLC, Warburg Pincus X, LLC and Warburg
Pincus X, L.P, all being directly or indirectly wholly controlled by Warburg Pincus
& Co. For the purpose of the SFO, each of Warburg Pincus & Co., Warburg
Pincus Partners LLC, Warburg Pincus X, LLC, Warburg Pincus X, L.P. and Warburg
Pincus Private Equity X, L.P. is deemed to be interested in the shares beneficially
owned by Earn Max Enterprises Limited.

FEWE(RE)BRAT —F——FhEmS
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Shares or

Underlying Shares of the Company

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2011, none of the directors
and chief executives of the Company or their respective associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company; or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”), to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

EHREEDT

HEEE EERITRA

R EE BHABED

(FraE—) Approximate

Number of percentage of

BERAEE underlying the issued

Name 54 Number of shares held share capital of

a4 of the director Capacity shares held (Note 1) the Company

T4 FE =) WANG Hongjun Mete2  Za5H A - 290,872 0.0032%
Beneficial owner (L)

FEi LI Xuehua EnlAA - 341,216 0.0037%
Beneficial owner (L)

BE HE Binwu EnlA A 400,000(L) 341,216 0.0081%
Beneficial owner (L)

JIEg (M=) JIANG Nan Mete 3) BnlEE A - 295,068 0.0032%
Beneficial owner (L)

(L) RT4FE (L) Denotes long positions

M — - B ESKREMEMREZABRND -

Note 1: Represents the underlying shares subject to share options which are unlisted

SRR LETEYRBBAITETA -

M= FAEXRENESTER2011F6/178 8

AR RBEFAGERE  ETHER/AAT

BE-o

HiF= IEEEMESTHN2011F6R178 B

MERBFREERER  ETBALARRE

%o

INTERIM REPORT 2011

Note 2:

Note 3:

physically settled equity derivatives.

Upon the expiry of his term as a director at the annual general meeting held on

17 June 2011, Mr. WANG Hongjun ceased to be a director of the Company.

Upon the expiry of his term as a director at the annual general meeting held on

17 June 2011, Mr. JIANG Nan ceased to be a director of the Company.

FRANSHION PROPERTIES (CHINA) LIMITED
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
For the six months ended 30 June 2011:

Mr. HE Binwu, Ms. LI Xuehua, Mr. LAU Hon Chuen, Ambrose, Mr. SU
Xijia and Mr. LIU Hongyu were re-elected as directors of the Company
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 17 June 2011.

Mr. LI Congrui was appointed as executive director of the Company
on 17 June 2011 and Mr. LI Xin was appointed as non-executive
director of the Company on 17 June 2011.

Mr. WANG Hongjun, Mr. JJANG Nan, Mr. GAO Shibin and Mr. NGAI
Wai Fung decided to retire from the Board upon the expiry of their
term as directors of the Company at the annual general meeting
held on 17 June 2011, and did not offer themselves for re-election
at the annual general meeting. They have confirmed that they have
no disagreement with the Board and no matters relating to their
retirement shall be brought to the attention of shareholders.

As a result of the above change in directors, the composition of the
special committees under the Board is as follows:

Audit Committee: Mr. SU Xijia (Chairman), Ms. LI Xuehua and Mr. LIU
Hongyu

Remuneration and Nomination Committee: Mr. LAU Hon Chuen,
Ambrose (Chairman), Mr. LI Xin and Mr. SU Xijia

Strategy and Investment Committee: Mr. HE Cao (Chairman), Mr. LUO
Dongjiang, Mr. LI Congrui, Mr. HE Binwu and Mr. LIU Hongyu

Independent Board Committee: Mr. LAU Hon Chuen, Ambrose
(Chairman), Mr. SU Xijia and Mr. LIU Hongyu

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the Company’s
directors and senior management during the period under review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had repurchased, sold
or redeemed any listed securities of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2011.
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REVIEW OF THE OPTION OVER SHIMAO INVESTMENT
BY THE INDEPENDENT BOARD COMMITTEE

A meeting was held by the Independent Board Committee comprising
all independent non-executive directors of the Company on 22
August 2011 to review its decision made on 17 March 2011 not to
exercise, for the time being, the option to acquire Sinochem Group’s
15% interest in China Shimao Investment Company Limited (“Shimao
Investment”).

After careful review of the relevant information of Shimao Investment
and taking into account the recent significant achievement in land
reserve, in particular, the Changsha Meixi Lake Project acquired in
2011 which is a large-scale development with long development cycle
and huge demand for funds, the Company considers the acquisition
of Shimao Investment at the moment as a greater challenge to
the Company in various aspects including manpower and financial
capacity. In addition, with only 15% equity interests in Shimao
Investment, Sinochem Group does not have a material influence on
the management and business of Shimao Investment given its low
shareholding percentage. Besides, the financial contribution of Shimao
Investment is mainly made through dividend and bonus distribution
and the synergies generated to the Company are minimal. In view of
the foregoing, all the independent non-executive directors considered
that the exercise of the option over Shimao Investment currently is not
in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The Independent Board Committee unanimously resolved still not
to exercise the option to acquire Sinochem Group’s 15% interest
in Shimao Investment. As disclosed in the prospectus and the
announcement dated 9 April 2010 of the Company, the Independent
Board Committee would continue to review the option over Shimao
Investment from time to time, and relevant disclosure will be made in
the interim and annual reports of the Company.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee under the Board has reviewed the unaudited
condensed consolidated interim financial statements of the Company
for the six months ended 30 June 2011 and also discussed with
the Company’s senior management about the matters such as the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Company.

The interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2011 have not
been audited but have been reviewed by Ernst & Young in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Review Engagements 2410 “Review of
Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor
of the Entity”, issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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MATERIAL LITIGATION

For the six months ended 30 June 2011, the Company was not
subject to any material litigation that could have a material adverse
impact on the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules to govern securities transactions by the directors.
Having made specific enquiries of all the directors, the Company
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code during the six months ended 30 June 2011.

All the employees of the Group shall comply with “Rules for Securities
Transactions by the Employees of Franshion Properties” formulated by
the Company with reference to the Model Code in their dealings in
the Company’s securities. For the six months ended 30 June 2011, the
directors of the Company were not aware of any non-compliance with
the rules by any employee.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“Corporate Governance Code”) set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the six months ended 30
June 2011.

Code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code stipulates
that a director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to
re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after the
appointment, while the Articles of Association of the Company
provides that such director may be elected by the shareholders at the
first annual general meeting after the appointment. There exists minor
difference between the practices of the Company and that of the
Corporate Governance Code, and such difference will not adversely
affect the operations of the Company.
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